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CORPORATE PROFILE
e P

Established in 1991, Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited is one
of the leading jewellery retailers in Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group
principally engages in the sourcing, designing, wholesaling and retailing
of a variety of gold jewellery, gold ornaments, gem-set jewellery, jadeite,
gemstones and other accessory items, with a total of over 470 retail
outlets in Hong Kong, the PRC, Macau, Canada and the United States.

The Group was listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange in May 1997.
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CORPORATE EVENTS
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“Dancing Butterfly” and P> = .= F

“Tempting Heart” Series of e
“K-gold” 18K Gold
Collection

['K-gold | 18K 4 fif
[ o WS | K
[ o LIRS

=

<« Launch of the newly
introduced “Wedding
Ring” Collection for

[ %% W | 22 5

National Day Promotion

e — BB HE A2

“Everlasting Series” P> \\ | ?L_,, b
& “Passionate Series”
of “Sol Diamond” )
Collection to represent
a token of love and P
romance on -
Valentine’s Day

Ry AR B
[ I 88 |2 [ |
N SER]

nuRW ‘ <« “Hugging Panda”
H Collection to welcome the
] N Beijing Olympics
e i 45 bt R i 4 ) Y
L [RCRLAESH IR 5

& )

- 4 . »
e Gt
Pure gold ornaments “Lucky P> p 3 ‘ ———

0OX?” Collection and mini %
gold accessories of “12
Chinese Zodiac” to celebrate e gy
the Lunar Chinese New Year 5 e )

BRI 7 BRI R 4
SHFIE IR K
[QREET AN

Bl 5 4 ) |

A Sponsored the diamond crown and jewellery pieces for the winners
of “Miss Hong Kong Pageant” for 11 consecutive years

A1 AR BT /M &80 T A IR



Being the exclusive sponsor for the winners’ jewellery pieces in A
“Miss Asia Pageant” for several years

ZARYEIET SEPH/IME 158 53R B
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A Participated in exhibition activities including “Hong Kong
International Wedding Trade Fair 2008” and “Hong Kong
International Wedding Trade Fair 2009” held in Hong Kong
Convention and Exhibition Centre in November 2008 and
March 2009 respectively

ZHREEED > G455 B 2008411 A K%20094E3 A v &
B T R 0 BT O T s S B A S R A 1R 2008 | &
[ T s 1S40 B 45 08 AR 55 19 R 2009

A “The Best Brand Enterprise Award (Greater China)” for 3
consecutive years

LA — AR SR e R A 2658 O PP 2R |

Obtained 4 awards in Worldmart Panyu International A
Colored Gems Design Competition

7 M B B (0 B | R P oA ST R
AR BEIH

T “estwood oy
Exclusive jewellery P>

sponsor of the fashion show 4
at Vivienne Westwood
Opus Exhibition of Giant ]
Polaroid Photographs r
q
.45 Vivienne Westwood P
Opus B & REARAH 1
B2 BRSO R T : 0
T A B v
Pq
om

A Invited by the Leisure and Cultural Services Department to join
the “Hong Kong Design Series 6: Jewellery for Life” exhibition
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HONOURS & AWARDS
R BB

“Capital Weekly Service Awards 2008”

2008 ¥ 7 <336 it 5 K 3¢ |
Organizer: Capital Weekly Magazine

EENE - EATHE

J A IR

un / \ “Most Favorable Enterprise with Good Credibility” & “Consumers’
Most Favorable Hong Kong Brands” in the “PRC Consumers’

200 8 Most Favorable Hong Kong Brands Campaign 2008

(120082 B3I 2245 Joc 28 hh L J 2 T4 B0 A3 MUK B8 | B[ 8 4 M B i |

Organizer: China Enterprise Reputation and Credibility Association (Overseas) Limited
LI - e (oh) 26 B g

“The 5th Hong Kong Merchants of Integrity Award” and ““ The Sth Macau
Merchants of Integrity Award”

A \ H 505 70 e 0 oA W 0 | ~ 58 o o R ) A R oA i %
ug )

“My Favourite Top Ten Brands of Hong Kong’ and
200 8 “My Favourite Top Ten Brands of Macau”

[REFERE TR REZFEBMT TR0

Organizer: Guangzhou Daily

LS - BN H R

“The Best Brand Enterprise Award 2008 (Greater China)”
[ Jge e i Rl A 3R 582008 (Kt ) |

Organizer: Hong Kong Productivity Council
Sept jl_; H LT B R

200 8 “The Most Outstanding Brand 2008 (Greater China)”
[R5 75 il it R 32008 |

Organizer: Eastweek Magazine

LA - HE T

“The Retail Asia Pacific Top 500 Awards” &
One of the Top Ten Retailers in Hong Kong
[ SRR IR T B 5005 | XA+ KBt FHEH2—

Organizer: Retail Asia and Euromonitor International
F IR ¢ Retail AsiaB2Euromonitor International

—_—
NOV I H 4 awards in ‘“Worldmart Panyu International Colored Gems Design Competition”
7155 B BSR4 5 4 [ SR B v o R il R ZE AR MR A 38
200 8 Organizers: Gems & Jewelry Trade Association of China, Guangzhou Panyu Government,
and International Colored Gemstone Association

EHEAS - PR B E TR - BN R B IRARBUT - BB AEA e
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Silver Prize of Rings Group in ‘“Buyers’ Favorite Jewelry Design

D + — H Competition 2008”
eC —a [ 35 32 B S0 o B st FE 262008 I i 411 i

Organizer: Hong Kong Jewelry Manufacturers’ Association

2008 TR | TV B R

3 awards in “The 10th Hong Kong Jewellery Design Competition”
S AU Bk S T PR 30
Organizers: Hong Kong Trade Development Council, Hong Kong Jewellers” &
—_— Goldsmiths’ Association, Hong Kong Jewellery & Jade Manufacturers Association,
Feb A H Hong Kong Jewelry Manufacturers’ Association and Diamond Federation of
Hong Kong, China

2009 EWENE - FBH SRR
i R xR e
TR £ AR &
A UE TR R SRR &
A A

Design Competition”

585 Jve B T R st B 2 g RO
2009 Organizer: South Sea Pearl Consortium
LN - BRI

“Hong Kong Service Award — Quality Living Category”
T8 88 J5 R 88 — R A 35 A3

Organizer: Eastweek Magazine

A - R T

M — a H Numerous Certificates of Merit in ‘“The 7th International South Sea Pearl Jewellery
ar —
—



Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7~ A4 [ (B %) A BR A 7

HONOURS & AWARDS
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AWARDED JEWELLERY PIECES AT A GLANCE

REER AR Ml s

532 B KON T EE#E2008

Product 1B % :
Motion )
Award HEH:
Silver Prize 5 H
Category AL

Rings Group & F5 41

“The Buyers’ Favorite Jewelry Design Competition 2008”

“The 10th Hong Kong Jewellery Design Competition™
51 T A ER L BERT L

Product £ :

Suspension %

Award HE5:
Merit Award fEEL4%

“The 10th Hong Kong Jewellery Design Competition”
ERRNEES e

Product i :
Energy AE& Z ik

Award 3E5i:
Merit Award {5

“The 10th Hong Kong Jewellery Design Competition™
S 1 JE A s R B BT L

Product fE i :
City #k€r

Award HE5:
Merit Award {3

“The 7th International South Sea Pearl Jewellery Design Competition”

SF - Ji R PR T B e

Product /£ % :

The Drops #2%f) #5 2k
Award HE5:
Certificate of Merit

(L L

-

“The 7th International South Sea Pearl Jewellery Design Competition”

SF L Ji R PR T B e

Product fE i :
Heart-Beat /11
Award H$EX:
Certificate of Merit
ok
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AWARDED JEWELLERY PIECES AT A GLANCE

AR E A iy

“Worldmart Panyu International Colored Gems Design Competition”

B B I P (e B T SR B o DA It K2R

Product £ ¥ :
Birds 5%/
Award HE5:
Creativity Prize £
Category &1

Earrings H-BR41

“Worldmart Panyu International Colored Gems Design Competition”

2 B B R 5 B A [ B o Lo A IRt R 2

Product 1B % :

ik

Award HE5:

Entries award A [#] 4%
Category #1j:
Bracelets -5/ T8

“Worldmart Panyu International Colored Gems Design Competition”

5 1B R R 5 B A [ B o Do Rt R 2

Product 4B :
FRMHE

Award 3E5i:

Entries Award A [#4&
Category #1)):
Bracelets F§if /T

“Worldmart Panyu International Colored Gems Design Competition”

o B R R 5 B 1 [ B o oA IRt R 2

Product /£ % :
W

Award 3E¥5i:

Entries Award A [#4& ST o h
Category AL3: " : e
Rings Group &35 41

“The 7th International South Sea Pearl Jewellery Design Competition”

SF L Ji R PR T B S

Product £ :

Animated & Calm Bfj BL§}
Award $E5:

Certificate of Merit

“The 7th International South Sea Pearl Jewellery Design Competition”

55 - Jed B PR P R K 1 A EE 2R

Product £ % :
Aroma T H &
Award HEX:
Certificate of Merit
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CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S
STATEMENT

A7 BRI

WONG Wai Sheung ¥ {4
Chief Executive AT %

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited (”Luk Fook™ or “the
Group”), I am pleased to present to you the Group’s annual results for the
year ended 31st March 2009.

Year 2008 was an exciting and challenging year. The Beijing Olympics
oftered opportunities for the expansion of our retail business in the PRC.
However, in the fourth quarter, the world was hit and shocked by a financial
crisis that posed a lot of uncertainties and adversities to the global economic
environment. Thanks to our established brand name, our quality service

and our exquisite product craftsmanship, we could maintain a satisfactory
performance during the year under review. We could say that our business
experienced an uninterrupted growth, especially in the PRC market as the

PRC economy continued to stay strong amidst the global financial crisis.

Moving on to year 2009 we will continue to dedicate unceasing effort in
promoting our business. We know that 2009 will be a challenging year for
the retail industry. In such a challenging market environment, we believe that
only the strongest brands win, and even gaining more in market share. Our
long-term strategy is anchored on maximizing the earnings potential of our
brand. Our growth objectives are clear: to develop our brand mainly in the

PRC and Hong Kong and extend them into global platform.
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Our retail stores are well positioned given the recent economic shifts. Our
presence in China became more successful in 2008, and that has motivated us
to expand further. With more than 470 stores globally, scattering in the PRC,
Hong Kong, Macau, Canada and the United States, we are offering customers

the products at exceptional value.

The Group acquired the whole block of commercial building in Jordan
district, Hong Kong in June 2009 with consideration of HK$254,350,000. The
Group intends to use part of the property as its head office, and it will also use
the remaining portion of the property to provide office, show room and other
related facilities for business partners. In addition, the Group opened a retail
outlet in Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Hong Kong in June 2009, bringing the
total number of retail outlets in Hong Kong to 31 at present. The Group will
also open another retail outlet in Star House, Tsim Sha Tsui, in September

2009, in the hope of expanding its sales network in local tourist district.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S STATEMENT
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I am also glad to announce the Group’s wholly owned subsidiary, “China
Gems Laboratory Limited”, is being accredited the ISO17025 accreditation
on diamond testing by the Hong Kong Accreditation Services in April 2009.
Laboratories passing assessment procedures can issue reports of diamond
authentication bearing the Hong Kong Laboratory Accreditation Scheme
(HOKLAS) logo. It is a proof of authority for the authentication reports of
diamonds that the laboratory tests, and also strengthens the confidence of
consumers, jewellery traders and manufacturers in Hong Kong diamond
products. Together with the ISO17025 accreditation on jadeite testing
obtained in 2005, the laboratory is the only jewellery authentication laboratory
obtaining both accreditations in Hong Kong, signifying authentication
professionals, authentication facilities and management systems of “China

Gems Laboratory” reach first class international standards.

OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, the Group shall concentrate its effort on developing the PRC
market. The new policy of “one issuance, multiple entries” for Shenzhen
residents and the promotion of domestic consumption by the PRC government
provided favourable factors to the Group’s business. In addition, economic
growth was sustained in the PRC economy despite the financial crisis. The
Group sees great potential in the development of the PRC market and is

determined to further increase its market share in the PRC.
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With the Group’s Hong Kong business becoming mature and remaining
steady, we believe that the PRC market shall be the key growth driver in the
future. The Group will continue to promote the “Luk Fook™ brand through
various promotion opportunities. Not only will the Group accelerate its speed
in opening self-operated shops in the PRC, but will also look for suitable
expansion opportunities in second and third tier cities in the PRC. The Group

will also establish its presence in overseas markets when opportunities arise.

Last but not least, the hard work of our staff cannot go unnoticed. Our success
relies on the outstanding efforts of our staff in providing the best service to
our valuable customers. Their effort undoubtedly contributed to the great
success of our business performance worldwide. In the years to come, we
will continue to strive for business growth with exceptional energy and

seize opportunities to further expand our sales network on the international
platform. We will also engage our customers and repay their loyalty to the

Group by designing products with greater creativity and excellence.

By order of the Board
Wong Wai Sheung

Chief Executive

Hong Kong, 22 July 2009
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Results

For the year ended 31st March 2009, the Group’s total turnover was
approximately HK$3,856,984,000, which represented a 14.5% growth as
compared to HK$3,367,182,000 in the previous year. Profit attributable

to shareholders dropped 12.4% to approximately HK$275,160,000 from
HK$313,989,000 of last year. Operating profit margin decreased from 11.1%
to 8.3%. Basic earnings per share were HK 55.9 cents (2008: HK 63.8 cents).

Dividend

The Directors proposed a final dividend of HK 12 cents per share (2008: HK
15.5 cents per share) for the year ended 31st March 2009. In addition to the
interim dividend of HK 5 cents per share already paid, the dividend for the
full year amounted to HK 17 cents per share (2008: HK 25.5 cents per share).
The proposed dividend will be paid on 11th September 2009 following the
approval at the Annual General Meeting.

Overview

The overall performance in the financial year 2008/09 was satisfactory. The
Group’s total turnover maintained a growth in face of the slowing down of
the economy. The economy of the PRC stayed strong in spite of the global
financial crisis. Appreciation of Renminbi and the continued influx of the
PRC tourists benefited the Group’s retail business.

The Group’s turnover from the retail business accounted for 79.7% of the total
turnover, registering a 23% growth compared to the previous year, amounting
to HK$3,075,565,000. Sales for gemstone jewellery products increased by
6.3% while sales for gold products excluding trade-in transactions surged by
42.2% because customers see gold as a more reliable investment product than
currencies and the stock market. Turnover from wholesale business reached
HK$777,870,000, which accounted for 20.2% of the total turnover. For the
year ended 31st March 2009, the Group’s turnover in gold products and
gemstone jewellery products, excluding trade-in transactions, accounted for
54% and 46% respectively.

From the figures of the Hong Kong Tourism Board, tourists arrivals from the
PRC in 2008 increased by 11.9% as compared to that of 2007. The increase
in the number of the PRC tourists visiting Hong Kong offset the negative
effect that the financial crisis caused on their spending habits. The Group
therefore could still benefit from the growing number of the PRC tourists who
demanded for luxury and quality jewellery items in Hong Kong.
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BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

Hong Kong Market

The Hong Kong market remained the key market of the Group, taking up
80.7% of the Group’s total turnover. As at 31st March 2009, the Group
operated a total of 30 retail outlets in Hong Kong. During the year under
review, the Group opened two self-operated shops in Tseung Kwan O and
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong. The Group has mostly finished reimaging all
retail outlets in Hong Kong during the year under review.

Over 50% of Hong Kong sales were contributed by the PRC tourists. The
appreciation of Renminbi and the opening up of second and third tier cities

in the PRC for Individual Visiting Scheme benefited the Group. In the year
under review, the global financial crisis weakened the purchasing desire of
local customers, but the increasing demand for gold products for marriage and
investment purposes from the PRC tourists sustained the Group’s business.

PRC Market

The Group’s business benefited greatly from the strong growth of the PRC
economy as well as the Beijing Olympic Games. The Group will focus

its efforts on developing the PRC market as the major market contributor.
During the year under review, turnover from the PRC market accounted for
11.7% of the Group’s total turnover, amounting to HK$449,472,000 (2008:
HK$263,064,000), representing a 71% increase as compared to the previous
year.

As at 31st March 2009, the Group operated a total of 400 licensee shops. The
Group has also opened up 8 self-operated shops in first tier cities in the PRC
including Beijing, Wuhan, Hangzhou and Nanjing in the year under review,
bringing the total number of self-operated shops in the PRC to 19. The Group
shall further expand in the PRC market by opening self-operated shops in
second and third tier cities.
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Macau Market

For the Macau market, the Group held an optimistic view in the retail industry
of Macau. The business performance of the Macau shops was satisfactory
during the year under review. The Group opened its fourth retail outlet in
Macau in December 2008. Turnover from the Macau shops amounted to
HK$268,411,000 (2008: HK$151,415,000), representing a 77% increase as
compared to the previous year.

Overseas Market

The Group will continue to work according to the corporate motto of “Brand
of Hong Kong, Sparkling the World”, to expand our retail network in local,
Macau and the PRC markets, and to look for suitable opportunities to broaden
our network internationally.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Products

The Group launched a series of new products with exquisite designs and
craftsmanship during the year to cater for our diversified customer segments
and different occasions. Promotional series are as follows:

*  “Beauty of Love” Series for Mother’s Day Promotion

* “Dancing Butterfly” and “Tempting Heart” Series of “K-gold” 18K Gold
Collection

*  “Hugging Panda” Collection to welcome the Beijing Olympics
*  Pure gold “Xifu” Collection for wedding couples
* Newly launched “Wedding Ring” Collection for National Day Promotion

*  “Praising Series” of “Sol Diamond” Collection specially designed for
sparkling Christmas

*  Pure gold ornaments “Lucky OX” Collection, mini gold accessories of “12
Chinese Zodiac” and “Lucky OX” Gold Bar Collection” to celebrate the
Lunar Chinese New Year

* “Everlasting Series” & “Passionate Series” of “Sol Diamond” Collection
to represent a token of love and romance on Valentine’s Day
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Sales Network

As at 31st March 2009, the Group had 55 wholly owned retail outlets under
the brand name of “Luk Fook Jewellery” in the PRC, Hong Kong, Macau, the
United States and Canada. Besides, the Group operated a retail outlet namely
“Luvina Jewelers” in San Jose, California of the United States. 2 new shops
were opened in Hong Kong during the year: they are located at Tseung Kwan
O and Causeway Bay respectively, bringing the number of shops in Hong
Kong to a total of 30. The Group also opened its fourth retail outlet in Macau
located at Avenida Do Infante D.Henrique, to cater for the growing demand
of customers.

During the year, the Group operated a total of 19 self-operated shops in
Guangzhou, Beijing, Nanjing, Shanghai, Hangzhou, Lanzhou, Ningbo,
‘Wuhan and Jinan in the PRC. Nine of them are located in Beijing, taking the
advantages of domestic retail industry brought about by the Beijing Olympics.
Moreover, majority of the self-operated shops were opened in large-scale
department stores to accommodate the consumption behavior of the PRC
customers. The Group’s licensee shops in the PRC were also increased to 400.

Marketing and Promotion

To further strengthen Luk Fook’s corporate brand image and operate
consistently with the corporate motto of “Brand of Hong Kong, Sparkling the
World”, the Group actively participated in a wide range of marketing activities
and publicity campaigns in order to further consolidate its brand positioning,
increase its popularity and facilitate the expansion of its global retail network.
Meanwhile, the Group also adopted both long-term and creative marketing
strategies in its key markets to publicize its revamped brand image to more
customer segments and also boost sales.

During the year, the Group continued to actively design and execute various
initiatives including TV, print, outdoor and internet advertising, direct
marketing, public relations activities, and events such as jewellery sponsorship
and exhibitions. Below are some highlights:

e Sponsored the diamond crown and jewellery pieces for the winners of
“Miss Hong Kong Pageant” for 11 consecutive years

e Being the exclusive sponsor for the winners’ jewellery pieces in “Miss
Asia Pageant” for several years

e Being the sponsor for “The 58th Miss World Pageant” Guangdong
Region Competition

e Sponsored the “Miss Chinese Pageant” in Vancouver and Toronto,
Canada, for several years
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Exclusive jewellery sponsor of the fashion show at Vivienne Westwood
Opus Exhibition of Grant Polaroid Photographs

Invited by the Leisure and Cultural Services Department to join the “Hong
Kong Design Series 6: Jewellery for Life” exhibition

Participated in well-recognized jewellery exhibitions including “Style
Hong Kong, Hangzhou”, “China International Gold, Jewellery and Gem
Fair (Guangzhou) 2008, “2008 Shenzhen International Jewellery Fair”
and “JMA Macau Jewellery Show 2008”

Participated in exhibition activities including “Hong Kong International
Wedding Trade Fair 2008” and “Hong Kong International Wedding
Trade Fair 2009 held in Hong Kong Convention and Exhibition Centre
in November 2008 and March 2009 respectively

Broadcasted large volume of TV commercials through mainstream TV
channels in Hong Kong and the PRC, and sponsored products for TV
programmes and key dramas

Invited celebrity Mr. Raymond Lam to participate in ribbon cutting
activities for debut of the PRC shops

Sponsored “Aaron Kwok De Show Reel Live in Concert 2008 — Macau”

Enhanced the advertising impact by strategically placing outdoor
advertisements at the back of KMB buses of different routes throughout
Hong Kong and Kowloon.

Actively explored online promotion platform by putting banner
advertisements, advertorial write-up and launching online games

Launching new products and key promotion items in festivals including
Mother’s Day, National Day of the PRC, Christmas, Chinese New Year
and Valentine’s Day, stimulating the consumers’ demand through large-
scale publicity programmes in order to achieve better promotion results

Effectively delivering promotional messages to targeted individual
travelling scheme tourists through print advertisements on guide maps

Sponsored the gold price index on wedding portal “www.esdlife.com” to
maximise the exposure of the Group’s “Wedding” Collection in the Hong

Kong market

Donation to assist the victims of Sichuan Earthquake
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* Donation and jewellery gift coupons sponsor to “Tung Wah Charity Show
2008~

e 2008 Marketing Research Scheme

*  “Ming Chee Sing Chinese Opera shows” exclusively for Luk Fook
Jewellery’s customers and staff

»  Special joint promotion programmes with P&G, Shiseido, Hang Seng
Bank, Bank of China, etc

Brand Management

The Group strongly believes that sales performance will be greatly influenced
by brand reputation, and a reputable brand helps bolster customers’
purchasing confidence. Therefore, the Group exerts unceasing effort to work
for a well-developed brand management system, which strives to convey a
consistent brand image and enhance its superior brand equity in the markets,
continuing to reinforce its trusted brand image.

During the year, the Group obtained a number of awards in recognition of its
outstanding achievements in brand building and management. They included:

e “Capital Weekly Service Awards 2008”
*  “Most Favorable Enterprise with Good Credibility” and “Consumers’
Most Favorable Hong Kong Brands” in the “PRC Consumers’ Most

Favorable Hong Kong Brands Campaign” for 3 consecutive years

e “The 5th Hong Kong Merchants of Integrity Award” for 4 consecutive
years

e “The 5th Macau Merchants of Integrity Award”
e “My Favorite Top Ten Brands of Hong Kong” for 4 consecutive years
e “My Favorite Top Ten Brands of Macau”

e “The Best Brand Enterprise Award (Greater China)” for 3 consecutive
years

e “The Most Outstanding Brand 2008 (Greater China)”
*  “The Retail Asia Pacific Top 500 Awards” and ranked as one of the Top

Ten Retailers in Hong Kong by Retail Asia and Euromonitor International

* “Hong Kong Service Award — Quality Living Category” from Eastweek
Magazine
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Production

In order to enhance cost effectiveness and production efficiency, the Group
has adopted a certain degree of vertical integration and utilized its production
facilities in Hong Kong and the PRC to operate a portion of the gold and gem-
set jewellery’s production processes.

Portal Operation

The Group’s website “www.jewellworld.com” or “www.jw28.com” is an
electronic gateway for the global jewellery industry. It aims to serve as a
business-to-business trading platform among manufacturers, wholesalers and
retailers all over the world.

The portal also acts as an additional promotion channel for the Group. It is
regarded as a long-term plan for the Group to penetrate into the PRC as well as
global market, and paves the way for exploring jewellery markets worldwide.
The Group believes that every internet user is their potential customer; and
jewelers will use website more frequently to view product samples and to
order jewellery as to streamline their operation procedures. It will enhance
business potential.

Design

The Group is famous for its stylish designs of jewellery products. With the
Group’s outstanding and award-winning design team, the Group has designed
a wide range of products for customers’ selections. Those creative, attractive
and fashionable new products were well received by the markets all these
years. On top of that, with the Group’s experienced management team, the
Group has proved to be capable of anticipating changes in the consumers’
tastes and preferences, this has helped to ensure a promising future for the
Group.

The Group was also keen on participating in various local and international
jewellery design competitions during the year. A number of awards were

gained in these competitions, which included:

* 4 awards in “Worldmart Panyu International Colored Gems Design
Competition”

e Silver Award of Rings Group in “Buyers’ Favourite Jewellery Design
Competition 2008”

* 3 awards in “The 10th Hong Kong Jewellery Design Competition”

e Numerous Certificates of Merit in “The 7th International South Sea Pearl
Jewellery Design Competition”
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Quality Assurance

The Group is committed to maintain the highest levels of product quality.
To ensure the best quality of products, the Group set up its wholly owned
subsidiary gems laboratory “China Gems Laboratory Limited” in 1996.

Its scope of services includes authentication, grading of diamonds, and
authentication of jades and colored gemstones and quality assessment of
jewellery. The Laboratory is operated by a group of certified gemologists
who specialize in the authentication of gemstones and jade. With the ISO
17025 accreditation on both diamond and jadeite testing from the Hong
Kong Accreditation Service, the Laboratory has also successfully met the
principles of ISO 9001:2000 Quality Management Systems — Requirements,
demonstrating the professional quality assurance system of the Group. China
Gems Laboratory is the only jewellery authentication laboratory obtaining
both accreditions in Hong Kong.

Environmental Protection

In response to the growing corporate awareness in environmental protection
and to show the determination to save our planet, the Group joined the Earth
Hour 2009. It is initiated by WWF in 2007, had 2.2 million people and 2,100
businesses in Sydney, Australia turned off their lights for one hour. On 28th
March 2009, as one of the participants representing Hong Kong, part of the
Group’s retail outlets turned off the lights for one hour from 8:30pm to 9:30pm
to show our support.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group’s core business is gold and jewellery retailing. As at 31st March
2009, the Group’s cash on hand reached approximately HK$280 million
(2008: HK$185 million). The Group’s bank borrowings-to-equity ratio at the
year-end, being the proportion of total bank borrowings of approximately
HK$169 million (2008: HK$273 million) against total shareholders’ equity
of approximately HK$1,256 million (2008: HK$1,082 million), was 13.5%
(2008: 25.2%).

The Group’s income and expenditure streams are mainly denominated in
Hong Kong dollars.

B

ARG B O HERRE TS RE o TR Y B
EER > AL 19964 8L 2 K W@ 2 7 —
HER T E PO o FEERRET IR E o0 B0 R A

CLIESE OB REAR > DA ISR N A B
FBERE B o 2O — P e E A K
SEER MR A S E AR o B ESRE T AR
BFISO 17025 8 17 WA 5P 4R S 35 20 3 7 wR s b »
7% 0 IR R I A SISO 9001:2000 /B FIE R 4%
FOUERI > JE R AR B RO 8 R S B K
V- o FREETRET R 0 By A HE I — ] IR S I
THRREM IR E PO o

BRI

TR REA 2 F i 4 i SRR AR A B3 DA Rk
HBR A Py AR 2T Hh 3k — /N RF2009 | o
BTG el S AR 3 A i 2007 4F A YN & JE
B 5 42,200,000 A 22,100 % 1> 2 25 B B s —
I o JiA20094E3 A28 B 5 1E A A& s Hop— R4t
Fo AEE MM EEIEH FF830%E M
9:30BE —/INKF > DAFE S UL TS B Y S -

Y945 ol

b he o9, AT 3 61

AR PAZ L FE T B 4 B S BR B A o #2009
FEIH31LH > AR Y T 8B 4 £97£280,000,000
# 7T (20084 185,000,000 5 7T) o 7 45 [ it 4
48 F A SR AT A5 BAL AR HE R 5 13.5% (2008 4F
25.2%) » W TS HERAT 1 3K AL 49 169,000,000 45
JE (20084F © 273,000,000 70) A3} 5 o HE 25 48 %8
#)1,256,000,000 ¥ 7T (2008 4F : 1,082,000,000 5
JC) Z IR

A 2 WCCEH B TTSIE -



Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7<% il (0 %) 45 BR A 7

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
W BN i i B 53 B

Capital Expenditure

During the year under review, the Group incurred capital expenditures of
approximately HK$30 million (2008: HK$52 million), including the costs of
properties, leasehold improvement, furniture, fixture and equipment.

Capital Commitments

As at 31st March 2009, the Group had total capital commitments in respect of
acquisition of property, plant and equipment of approximately HK$1 million
(2008: HK$4 million).

Contingent Liabilities
The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities at 31st March
2009 and 31st March 2008.

Employment, Training, Development and Recruitment
Remuneration Policy

As at 31st March 2009, the number of employees of the Group was
approximately 2,445 (2008: 2,377). Remuneration policies are reviewed and
approved by the management on a regular basis. Remuneration packages are
structured to take into account the comparable level of the market. Bonus

and other merit payments are linked to the success of the Group and the
performance of individual employee. The policy is to encourage employees to
optimize business performance by providing them with financial incentives.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SRR

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

For the year ended 31st March 2009, the Company had properly applied
the principles of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices contained
in Appendix 14 (the “Code”) included in the Rules governing the listing
of securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) as follows:

A.
Al

A2

A3

A4

AS

A6

Directors

The Company is supervised by a Board of Directors who assumes
responsibility for leadership and control of the Company and is
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and strategising the Company’s affairs. They make decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company.

An independent non-executive director acts as the Board Chairman
while an executive director acts as the Chief Executive. There is a
clear division of responsibilities for the management of the Board and
the day-to-day management of the Company’s business to ensure a
balance of power and authority.

The Board comprises 6 executive directors, 5 non-executive directors
and 3 independent non-executive directors. They include persons
with a wealth of practical experiences in the jewellery industry,
accountancy profession, legal profession, general trading and

the securities industry. It has a balance of skills and experiences
appropriate for the requirements of the Company’s business. The
directors’ respective roles and biographies are set out on pages 40 to
44.

All directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the Company’s annual general meeting in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws.

Every director is continuously-reminded of the requirement to keep
abreast of his responsibility as a director of the Company, with
reference to the Listing Rules and the Company Laws inclusive, and
of the conduct, business activities and development of the Company.
Every independent non-executive director also confirms annually his
independence status to the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Directors are provided with appropriate information to enable them
to make an informed decision and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities as directors of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
(Continued)

B.
B.1

C.
C.1

C2

C3

D.2

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management
Information relating to the Company’s directors’ remuneration policy
and other remuneration related matters are disclosed in the Company’s
annual report. The Remuneration Committee is responsible for

setting policy on the remuneration of executive directors and senior
management and for fixing the remuneration packages. The level of
remuneration is sufficient to attract and retain the directors needed to
run the Company successfully. No director is involved in deciding his
own remuneration.

Accountability and Audit

The directors are responsible for preparing the financial statements
of each financial period, which give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at the financial period
end and of the result and cash flows of the Group for the year. In

the Company’s interim and annual reports which are issued within
the time limits stipulated by the Listing Rules, the Board presents

a balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects. The published financial
statements adopt, and consistently apply, suitable accounting policies
complying with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

The Board ensures the Company maintains sound and effective
internal control to safeguard the shareholders’ interest and the
Company’s assets. The Audit Committee, with the assistance of
the Internal Audit Team, regularly reviews the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control system. The Head of the Internal Audit
Team directly reports to the Audit Committee.

The Board establishes monitoring and procedural guidelines for
considering how it will apply the financial reporting and internal
control principles and for maintaining an appropriate relationship with
the Company’s external auditors. The Audit Committee established
by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules has clear terms of
reference.

Delegation by the Board

The Company has a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved
to the Board for its decision. The Board gives clear directions to
management as to the matters that must be approved by the Board
before decisions are made on behalf of the Company.

The Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee were formed
with specific written terms of reference that deal clearly with the
committees’ authority and duties. Such terms of reference are made
available to the public.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

(Continued)

E. Communication with Shareholders

E.1 The Board maintains an on-going dialogue with shareholders and
in particular, endeavors to provide transparency and uses the annual
general meetings to communicate with shareholders and invites their
participation in certain marketing events. Besides, the Company’s
official website serves as a handy communication channel for the
shareholders. Press releases and announcements about the Company’s
business affairs are made from time to time.

E2 The Company informs shareholders of the procedure for voting by
poll in the circular to shareholders, and ensures compliance with the
requirements about voting by poll contained in the Listing Rules and
the Company’s Bye-laws.

None of the directors is aware of any information that would reasonably
indicate that the Company is not, or was not for any part of the year ended
31st March 2009, in compliance with the Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopts the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules as a code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions. Having
made specific enquiry of all directors, it is confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions in relation to the year ended 31st
March 2009.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS HE
During the year ended 31st March 2009, the Company’s board of directors AEE20004E3 A31H ILAERE N » AN A HE G
comprised 6 executive directors, 5 non-executive directors and 3 independent A ZPATEF - HAIEPATER K =LMW1 I
non-executive directors. Individual directors’ attendance at board meetings BATHERH - FN > WHIEF LR ER T a®H
during the year were as follows: ZHEWT -
Attendance
Total number of Board meetings: 9 WP AR Y 9k R E
Executive Directors HITHESE
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung (Chief Executive) B o (T 9/9 100%
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen HH 2 e 719 78%
Mr. LAW Tim Fuk, Paul HIRAR S 9/9 100%
Mr. LAU Kwok Sum B RS 5/9 56%
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny BHHES LA 3/4 75%
(Appointed on 1 September 2008) (A20084F9 1 A AEZAT)
Miss WONG Lan Sze, Nancy R R MA 3/4 75%
(Appointed on 1 September 2008) (A20084F9 1 A AEZAT)
Non-executive Directors FHITEEF
Mr. WONG Koon Cheung B SR 7/9 78%
Mr. CHAN Wai B 719 78%
Mr. LEE Shu Kuan ZER ISR 7/9 78%
Miss YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline B /N 3/9 33%
Mr. HUI King Wai B 4/9 44%
Independent Non-executive Directors W IFBATEE
Mr. CHIU Wai Mo R 173 33%
(Resigned on 24 July 2008) (JA20084F7 H 24 H &#E)
Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP ERGEIr e 5/9 56%
Mr. LO Mun Lam, Raymond (Chairman) BRI () 7/9 78%
Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander W RS 2/6 33%
(Appointed on 24 July 2008) (JA20084F-7 H 24 H EZAT)
Average T 66%
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Board’s role is to provide entrepreneurial leadership of the Company
within a framework of prudent and effective controls which enables risk to
be assessed and managed. The Board controls the business but delegates
day-to-day responsibility to the executive management. The Board sets

the Company’s strategic aims, values and standards and ensures that its
obligations to its shareholders and others are understood and met. In the
interests of the Company, a number of matters are reserved by the Board.
Certain matters are the subject of recommendations by the Audit Committee
or Remuneration Committee. The Company Secretary, referring to the

list of reserved matters for the Board, assists the Chairman in establishing
the agenda of Board meetings. Each director may also request inclusion of
items in the agenda. Minutes of the Board/Committee meetings are open for
inspection by the directors.

The Company confirms that it has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors, namely, Mr. LO Man Lam, Raymond, Mr. HUI Chiu
Chung, JP and Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander, an annual confirmation of
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and that it still
considers each independent non-execuitve director to be independent.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Mr. LO Mun Lam, Raymond, an independent non-executive director, acts

as Chairman of the Board, while Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, an executive
director, acts as the Chief Executive. Their roles are segregated and therefore
are not exercised by the same individual. The Chairman is responsible for the
leadership and effective running of the Board. The Chief Executive is delegated
with the authority and responsible for running the Company’s business,
implementing the Company’s strategies in achieving business objectives.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the non-executive directors are appointed for two years, and the existing
appointments last until 31st March 2010.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

In compliance with the Code, the Board on 7th April 2005 established

a Remuneration Committee comprising 3 independent non-executive
directors and 2 executive directors. The remuneration committee is to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure

for all remuneration of directors and senior management; to determine

the specific remuneration packages; to review and approve performance-
based remuneration; to review and approve the compensation payable in
connection with any loss or termination of office or appointment of directors
and senior management; to oversee any major changes in employee benefits
structures throughout the Company or the Group; and to review the ongoing
appropriateness and relevance of the remuneration policy.

Individual committee members’ attendance at Remuneration Committee
meetings during the year were as follows:

w4
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Total number of Attendance

Remuneration Committee meetings: 2 FHZE B ARk 2% R E

Executive Directors HITHESE

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung BAREH 5B 212 100%

Mr. TSE Moon Chuen A A 2/2 100%

Independent Non-executive Directors W IFBATEE

Mr. CHIU Wai Mo R 0/1 0%
(Resigned on 24 July 2008) (JA20084F7 H 24 H &#E)

Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP (Committee Chairman) FERR O A L (E G &) 212 100%

Mr. LO Mun Lam, Raymond R 12 50%

Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander W RS 111 100%
(Appointed on 24 July 2008) (A20084F-7 H 24 H EZAT)

Average T 75%

In July and December 2008, the Remuneration Committee held 2 meetings to
review the policies for determining annual salary increments for the calendar
year 2009, to approve the payment of the discretionary year end bonus for
2008 and an incentive bonus scheme for all non-sales employees working at
the Head Office.

Particulars of the Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16
of the Listing Rules are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

JR20084E7 A X127 - #ihZ 5 & 5otk B F WK
R AR T BOR - LLURE RT 2009 J8 48 2 4F J 35 4
W~ LT S AT 2008 47 AR AL A6 AT K A i g b T
IS ER B 2 SEm LA -

HRAE 1 17 15 FI) B Bk 1 640 5% 2 8 S 4 19 R
B ML 16 -



Annual Report 2009 £ 28-29

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board is directly responsible for the nomination procedures, process and
criteria adopted to select and recommend candidates for directorship. Two
nominations of director were processed during the year ended 31st March
20009.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Analysis of remuneration in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided by the external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, Certified Public
Accountants, are as follows:

wHRA

HRG A TRITRNZIRATRTY - FHEE
UE 5 B MRS % o B2 20094F3 H31H
IR > B H IR BT -

A Y v <2
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Rkl £ 7t K A A MBS 2 I o3 A
o

2009 2008

HK$’000 HK$’000

T T

Audit services et s 3,096 3,164
Non-audit services I FT RS 68 68
Total mm%‘[’ 3,164 3,232

The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect to financial reporting
are stated in the Independent Auditor’s Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

In compliance with the Code of Best Practice applicable before 1st January
2005, the Board established an Audit Committee on 1st February 1999,
comprising 3 independent non-executive directors, in order to monitor the
accounting and financial reporting practices and internal control systems of
the Company. During the year ended 31st March 2009, the Audit Committee
held 2 meetings to consider matters including the 2008 annual report of the
Company, internal controls, the unaudited interim condensed consolidated
financial information for the six months ended 30th September 2008, and the
Company’s IT control environment.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

Individual committee members’ attendance at Audit Committee meetings
during the year were as follows:

BERAE @)
A I B R 2 B R kA
o

Attendance
Total number of audit committee meetings: 2 ERRAOTHRMKRY : 2K R E
Independent Non-executive Directors LI BATHE S
Mr. CHIU Wai Mo RS 0/1 0%
(Resigned on 24 July 2008) (A20084F:7 H 24 H B#F)
Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP R R R L 2/2 100%
Mr. LO Mun Lam, Raymond (Committee Chairman) — WSFR e (& & /) 2/2 100%
Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander W R e 1/1 100%
(Appointed on 24 July 2008) (FA2008%4E7 H 24 H #EZAT)
INTERNAL CONTROL Ay 0 B e

The Board is responsible for the Company’s system of internal control and for
reviewing its effectiveness through the Audit Committee.

The internal control system is designed to provide assurance on the
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of business record, and
the compliance with Company’s policies and procedures.

The system aims to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss rather than eliminate risks of failure in
operational systems, and to ensure achievement of the Company’s objectives.

The Audit Committee has received the internal control evaluation report
submitted by the Internal Audit Team. The report summarised information

relating to the work carried out in the following areas:

. The results of selective testing of internal control procedures, assets,
and financial records of the Company;

. A general evaluation of internal control system installed by the
Company; and

. An outline of major control issues, if any noticed during the year.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the report and discussed with the
management.
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INTERNAL CONTROL (Continued)

The Audit Committee recognised that an examination of the internal control
system has been adequately executed by the Internal Audit Team and the
Committee acknowledged that the management has been progressively
installing an adequate internal control system in order to ensure the
effective functioning of the Company’s operations. The Committee has also
recommended furthering the system to the area of various risks protection
aspect in order to safeguard the assets of the Company.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The internal audit is an independent function undertaken by the Internal
Audit Team reporting administratively to the Company’s management and
functionally to the Audit Committee. The Internal Audit Team is authorized
to obtain all information necessary to accomplish internal audit work.

A risk based audit approach has been adopted by the Internal Audit Team.
Internal control reviews are arranged regularly while paying close attention
to business or operation changes. Regular audit tests are carried out to ensure
key controls are operational. The Internal Audit Team conducts other projects
and investigating work as may be required.

Any significant internal audit findings are discussed with respective
department heads to have actions agreed and subsequently followed up, in
order to ensure that satisfactory control is maintained.

In each half-yearly work plan, manning levels of the Internal Audit Team are
agreed with the Audit Committee. A summary of the internal audit activities
and audit results are also submitted to the Audit Committee twice a year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT R b I M A B IR AT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31st March 2009, save as disclosed below, none of the directors and TA200943 H31H » BN CHE#EE SN » AN FE
chief executive of the Company had interests and short positions in the shares, =¥ ¢ FEZATEUAN BARMEA BT A BT o] A6 B 12 1]
underlying shares and debentures of the issuer or any associated corporation (2 26 7R 25 B B e (1 7825 RO B et 1) 5
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance XVHR) Z ety ~ AR BB B A5 25 v B A () IR 8

(“SFO”)) which (a) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be W 5 B B AR B 5 3520 KR 0 ZFRE B A R% AV 1 BT
entered in the register referred to therein; or (b) were required, pursuant to the  # & FCM 5 S (b)MRIEC LT 7 & FiEF TS5
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies to Gy W RE ST JI)) ZE R0 A ) B 28 T 2 i 2k B
be notified to the Company and the Exchange: WA

I.  Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the L ARSIy M B Z 58 -

Company:
Beneficial Controlled  Beneficiary TOTAL % of
Name of Director Owner Spouse Corporation of Trust INTEREST Shares
WYLk H A B ZEEREM A B A0 AR 4 1
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung 7,583,162 320,000 244,820,176 1,511,050 254,234,388 51.62%
AR A note (d) note (a) &(b) note (c)
BEEE)  BFE(a) B(b) 5T
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen 487,344 244,820,176 245,307,520 49.81%
A A e note (a) &(b)
B E () S (b)
Mr. WONG Koon Cheung 2,678,090 244,820,176 247,498,266 50.25%
R A note (a) &(b)
BiF 5 (a) K2 (b)
Mr. CHAN Wai 3,899,022 244,820,176 248,719,198 50.50%
BRAESEE note (a) &(b)
BFE(a) S (b)
Mr. LEE Shu Kuan 6,370,229 247,406,300 253,777,029 51.53%
2Rt S note (a),(b),
(e) &(f)
Bt ~ (b)
() ()
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, 420,000 22,000 1,511,050 1,953,050 0.39%
Danny note (g) note (c)
B HESEE 5t(g) (i)
Miss WONG Lan Sze, 232,000 1,511,050 1,743,050 0.35%
Nancy note (c)

R RE/NE 5T (c)



DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES (Continued)

I

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the
Company: (Continued)
Note (a)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, Mr. CHAN Wai, Mr. LEE
Shu Kuan and Mr. WONG Koon Cheung were also directors, and together
with their associates collectively controlled over one-half of the voting
power, of Luk Fook (Control) Limited which held 231,858,000 shares in the
Company. These directors were deemed to be interested in the same shares,
relevant disclosures were therefore duplicated for the purpose of SFO.

Note (b)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, Mr. CHAN Wai, Mr. LEE
Shu Kuan and Mr. WONG Koon Cheung were also directors, and together
with their associates collectively controlled over one-third of the voting
power, of Dragon King Investment Ltd. which held 12,962,176 shares in the
Company. These directors were deemed to be interested in the same shares,
relevant disclosures were therefore duplicated for the purpose of SFO.

Note (c)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Ms. LUK Chui Yee, Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny
and Miss WONG Lan Sze, Nancy were discretionary beneficiaries of the
WONG’s Family Trust (the “Trust”). The Trust was the beneficial owner of
the entire issued share capital of Kwai Kee Cheung Jewellery & Goldsmith

Company Limited which was the beneficial owner of 1,511,050 shares of the
Company.

Note (d)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung’s spouse, Ms. LUK Chui Yee, held 320,000 shares
of the Company.

Note (e)

Mr. LEE Shu Kuan held 33.3% of the entire issued share capital of Wah
Hang Kimon Investments Limited which in turn held 630,624 shares of the
Company.

Note (f)

Mr. LEE Shu Kuan held 51% of the entire issued share capital of Wah Hang

Kimon Holdings Limited which in turn held 1,956,000 shares of the Company.

Note (g)

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny’s spouse, Ms. CHEUNG Irene, held 22,000
shares of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT RN I 2 MR BOR AT ()
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES (Continued)
II.  Long positions in shares and underlying shares of Luk IL AR A AN R (BB A A

Fook (Control) Limited, the ultimate holding company w] JBe A B M BRI By 2 45 Y
Beneficial Controlled Beneficiary TOTAL % of
Name of Director Owner Spouse Corporation of Trust INTEREST Shares
Wik 44 B WA A W EZRBEE fEReZRA HEZR RO AN e v 4y e
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung 5,936,240 36,724,007 42,660,247 42.66%
AR e note (a)
B 53 (a)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen 406,556 82,853 489,409 0.49%
iRl e e note(b)
R 5E(b)
Mr. LAU Kwok Sum 1,600 1,600 0.002%
BIE AR
Mr. WONG Koon Cheung 4,585,920 4,585,920 4.59%
I RS note (c)
B 5E(c)
Mr. CHAN Wai 6,639,130 6,639,130 6.64%
BRfF SR
Mr. LEE Shu Kuan 7,291,338 1,093,575 8,384,913 8.38%
S note (d)
FHEE(d)
Miss YEUNG Po Ling, 60,000 60,000 0.06%
Pauline
ME ¥ /ME
Mr WONG Ho Lung, 36,724,007 36,724,007 36.72%
Danny note (a)
HIERESEE T (a)
Miss WONG Lan Sze, 36,724,007 36,724,007 36.72%
Nancy note (a)

TR RENE Bt (a)



DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES (Continued)

I

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of Luk
Fook (Control) Limited, the ultimate holding company

(Continued)
Note (a)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Ms. LUK Chui Yee, Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny
and Miss WONG Lan Sze, Nancy were discretionary beneficiaries of the
WONG’s Family Trust (the ‘“Trust”). The Trust was the beneficial owner of
the entire issued share capital of Kwai Kee Cheung Jewellery & Goldsmith
Company Limited which was the beneficial owner of 36,724,007 shares of
Luk Fook (Control) Limited.

Note (b)

Mr. TSE Moon Chuen’s spouse, Ms. FONG Anissa King, held 82,853 shares
of Luk Fook (Control) Limited.

Note (c)

Mr. WONG Koon Cheung together his spouse, Ms. SO Lai Sheung, controlled
the entire issued share capital of WKC Investments Limited which in turn held
4,585,920 shares of Luk Fook (Control) Limited.

Note (d)

Mr. LEE Shu Kuan held 33.3% of the entire issued share capital of Wah Hang

Kimon Investments Limited which in turn held 1,093,575 shares of Luk Fook
(Control) Limited.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st March 2009, save as disclosed below, so far as is known to any
director or chief executive of the Company, no person, other than a director or
chief executive of the Company, had an interest or short position in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

BB

200943 A31H » BT SCHEEE SN > AT
A2 o EEATBON BT > BRA AR #E 4
s FEATHN B4 > MEEEIC A A AR S ] 0
BB Hp > A AR5 8 5 R &P sE XV
HER 2 B 300 I AN R 2 MR SR AT

Controlled TOTAL
Name of Shareholder Beneficial Owner Corporation INTEREST % of Shares
JBE 3 44 0 B hE A ZYeP HERAN AR
Luk Fook (Control) Limited 231,858,000 231,858,000 47.08%
7S (PR A PR 7
First State Investments (Hong Kong) Limited 34,828,000 34,828,000 7.07%
note(a)
B 5E: (a)
Commonwealth Bank of Australia 34,828,000 34,828,000 7.07%
note(a)
Rt a)
Note (a) B 5k (a)

Commonwealth Bank of Australia was a 100% indirect controlling shareholder of First
State Investments (Hong Kong) Limited (“FSHK”). In turn, FSHK held 34,828,000
shares of the Company in the capacity as investment manager. By virtue of the SFO,
Commonwealth Bank of Australia was deemed to be interested in those shares of the
Company and relevant disclosures were therefore duplicated.

Commonwealth Bank of Australia %5 ## 7 First State
Investments (Hong Kong) Limited ( [ FSHK 1) 2 3B
T 2 W] PE SRR B > T FSHK DA 0 ¥ 46 3 5 4 45
34,828,000 B A< 23 B Ay o WA B R K 0
Commonwealth Bank of Australiat45 i 5% 5 A< 2> 7 ik
B EEA A - IO VR R -
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The directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31st March 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the retailing and wholesaling of gold jewellery and
gold ornaments, gem-set jewellery and gemstones, and other accessory items.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover by business segment is set out in note 6
to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 54.

The directors have declared an interim dividend of HKS cents per ordinary
share, totalling HK$24,625,000, which was paid on 16th January 2009.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK12 cents per
ordinary share, totalling HK$59,101,000 and payable on 11th September
20009.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year
are set out in note 28 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 17 to the financial statements.
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DONATIONS
Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to approximately
HK$743,000 (2008: HK$345,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in note
27 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31st March 2009, calculated under
the Companies Act of Bermuda, amounted to HK$412,557,000 (2008:
HK$403,628,000).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the last five financial
years ended 31st March are as follows:

Hax
A AL [ AF TN AE 22 48 3K 4 743,000 G (2008
AF 1 345,000400) o

JBEA
R0 AR 2 BB R BB H R M k27

Wl {3k Sy UK fili A
R E A AEFTE > AR AR 200943 H 31
H 2 A B4 IRt H5 £5412,557,0009 IC (2008 4F
403,628,000 7T) ©

TAE B
ALMEEIA3F RS E A AR
B E RASET

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T Tt T¥oo To0 T
Results E'S
Turnover BEH 1,961,720 2,126,297 2,845,147 3,367,182 3,856,984
Profit attributable to EIN/NEIL ETERZ DN
equity holders of JREA Ve ]
the Company 125,795 95,695 198,059 313,989 275,160
Assets and liabilities B K
Total assets W 832,084 898,941 1,120,029 1,706,004 1,754,445
Total liabilities A 158,775 170,749 257,144 607,639 481,218
Shareholders’ funds Jife 664,060 715,164 850,096 1,082,316 1,255,570
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the
Company’s shares during the year.

DIRECTORS

The directors during the year were:

Executive Directors
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung (Chief Executive)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen

Mr. LAW Tim Fuk, Paul

Mr. LAU Kwok Sum

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny
Miss WONG Lan Sze, Nancy

(Appointed on 1 September 2008)
(Appointed on 1 September 2008)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. WONG Koon Cheung

Mr. CHAN Wai

Mr. LEE Shu Kuan

Miss YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline
Mr. HUI King Wai

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHIU Wai Mo (Resigned on 24 July 2008)
Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP

Mr. LO Mun Lam, Raymond (Chairman)
Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander (Appointed on 24 July 2008 and

re-elected on 25 August 2008)

Pursuant to Bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws, one-third of the Directors shall
retire from office by rotation at each annual general meeting of the Company.
Accordingly, Mr. LAU Kwok Sum, Mr. WONG Koon Cheung, Mr. CHAN
Wai and Mr. LEE Shu Kuan shall retire by rotation at the next annual general
meeting. Pursuant to By-law 102(B) of the Bye-laws, Mr. WONG Ho Lung,
Danny and Miss WONG Lan Sze, Nancy who were appointed as Directors
of the Company on 1st September 2008 shall hold office only until the next
annual general meeting. All retiring Directors are eligible for re-election.

By an ordinary resolution passed at the Annual General Meeting held on 25th
August 2008, the Board was authorized to appoint additional directors up to a
maximum of 20 directors.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, aged 59, is the founder and Chief Executive of the
Group. He is also a member of the Remuneration Committee. He has over 42
years of experience in the Hong Kong jewellery industry and is responsible
for the overall strategic planning and management of the Group. Mr. Wong
has been appointed as the Associate Director of The Kowloon Gold Silver
and Jewel Merchant’s Staff Association since November 1993. He has also
been the Honorary Permanent Chairman of Jadeware Traders Industry &
Commerce Association and Chairman of Supervisory Committee of Kowloon
Jewellers’ and Goldsmiths” Association since 2001. He was also elected as
the Honorary Chairman of Macau Goldsmith’s Guild in 2005 and appointed
as the Honorary Chairman of the First General Committee of Guangdong
Golden Jewelry and Jade Industry’s Association in 2006. Mr. Wong was
invited to be the Honorary Vice-president of the Forth Council Gemological
Association of China, Gems & Jewelry Trade Association of China in 2007.
He has also been elected as a member of Hong Kong Trade Development
Council Jewellery Advisory Committee and QTSA Governing Council
(Retailer Category) and elected member of General Committee of Hong Kong
Brand Development Council in 2008. Besides, he is also a member of the
Guangzhou Huadu District Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference. He is the father of Mr. Wong Ho Lung,
Danny and Miss Wong Lan Sze, Nancy, Directors of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, aged 59, is the co-founder of the Group. Presently,
he is the Director & Deputy General Manager and also a member of

the Remuneration Committee. He has over 36 years of experience in
jewellery retailing business and is responsible for the sales operations and
administration of the Group’s retail shops. He has been appointed to various
positions over the years including: an executive committee member of the
Diamond Federation of Hong Kong, China Ltd. since 2000; an alternate
committee member of the Chinese Gold & Silver Exchange Society since
July 2004 and the Vice-Chairman of Kowloon Pearls, Precious Stones, Jade,
Gold and Silver Ornament Merchants Association since 2005. Moreover, he
was the Vice-President of Hong Kong Tsuen Wan Industries and Commerce
Association Limited for 10 years and was elected as the Chairman of the
fifth session in 2006; executive committee member of the Tsuen Wan Trade
Association Limited since 1996 and was appointed as a co-opted member of
the Tsuen Wan District Council, Industry & Commerce Committee in 1997
for a 10-year term. He is also a committee member of the Tsuen Wan District
Fight Crime Committee since 2003 and the Vice-Chairman of the Tsuen
Wan District Economy Promotion Committee from the year 2005 to 2007.
Mr. Tse was appointed as the Chairman of the Tsuen Wan Festival Lightings
Organizing Committee for 7 consecutive years between 1999 and 2005 and
became the Vice President in 2006. He also served as the honorable President
of the 32nd session of Hong Kong Kwun Tong Junior Police Call in the
same year. On 1st July 2006, Mr. Tse was awarded the “Chief Executive’s
Commendation for Community Service” by the Government of the Hong
Kong SAR. He is also currently a Member of Macau Goldsmiths Guild.

Mr. Tse was also appointed as the Honorary President of Shatin Livelihood
Concern Association and Cheung Ching Friends Association in 2009.

Mr. LAW Tim Fuk, Paul, aged 56, joined the Group in 1996. Presently,

he is a Director, Company Secretary, Qualified Accountant, and Financial
Controller of the Group. He is a member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants,
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Mr. Law holds a Bachelor’s
Degree with honours in Accountancy. He has over 16 years of accounting
and auditing experience and over 18 years of experience in commerce. He
is mainly responsible for the accounting and finance of the Group. He also
handles communication with institutional investors and financial reporters.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. LAU Kwok Sum, aged 67, joined the Group as a Branch Manager in
1995. Presently, he is a Director & Zone Manager (Yaumatei & Mongkok).
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lau worked as a regional manager in a

listed jewellery company in Hong Kong. Mr. Lau has more than 39 years of
experience in retailing, purchasing and wholesaling of jewellery products.

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny, aged 32, is the Director and Operations
Manager of the Group. He joined the Group in 2002 and is responsible for
the execution and implementation of the Group’s operation directions and
strategies and actively participates in management information systems
including hardware integration and software development. He is also in charge
of the Group’s image rebranding and the design of its retail outlets. With rich
overseas experiences and background, Mr. Wong is principally responsible
for the design and establishment of the Group’s branches in Hong Kong,
Macau, China, USA and Canada. Mr. Wong is also an active participant in
the community and is currently: a Member of the Sihui Municipal Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference; Permanent
President of Sze Wui and Kwong Ning Clansman’s Association (Hong Kong)
Limited; Honorary President of Junior Police Call of Kwai Tsing District;
Honorary President of Kwai Tsing Fire Safety Ambassador; Vice-president
of the Executive Committee of Shamshuipo Council For the Promotion of
Cultural & Recreational Services Ltd; Member of Sham Shui Po East Area
Committee of Sham Shui Po District Office; and Member of Sham Shui Po
Commercial & Industrial Liaison Committee. In 2009, Mr. Wong received
the GIA Diamonds Graduate title. He is the son of Mr. Wong Wai Sheung,
the Group’s Chief Executive and the brother of Miss Wong Lan Sze, Nancy,
Director of the Company.

Miss WONG Lan Sze, Nancy, aged 29, is the Director and Assistant
Business Manager of the Group. She joined the Group in 2006 and assists

in formulating and implementing the Group’s overall business strategies.

She is also responsible for the execution of the Group’s marketing policies.
Miss Wong holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Commerce from the University of
Toronto, Canada, and is a Certified Public Accountant of the United States of
America. Prior to joining the Group, Miss WONG worked for an international
professional accountants’ firm in Hong Kong, where she performed auditing
and accounting assignments for a variety of business organizations including
listed companies. She received the GIA Diamonds Graduate title in 2007. She
is the daughter of Mr. Wong Wai Sheung, the Group’s Chief Executive and
the sister of Mr. Wong Ho Lung, Danny, Director of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Koon Cheung, aged 76, has over 57 years of experience in
retailing and manufacturing of jewellery in Hong Kong. He joined the Group
in 1992.

Mr. CHAN Wai, aged 79, has over 62 years of experience in retailing and
manufacturing of jewellery in Hong Kong. He joined the Group in 1992.

Mr. LEE Shu Kuan, aged 82, has over 42 years of experience in property
development in Hong Kong. He joined the Group in 1991.

Miss YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline, aged 42, is the co-founder of the Group. Miss
Yeung has over 21 years of experience in public relations. Miss Yeung was
the winner of Miss Hong Kong and Miss International of Goodwill in 1987,
and also the 4 Runner-up of Miss Universe and Queen of Asia in 1988. Miss
Yeung was also the president of the Wai Yin Club for the year 1995-1996.
She received GIA Diamonds Graduate in 2005.

Mr. HUI King Wai, aged 59, is a solicitor practising in Hong Kong and joined
the Group in 1999. He was admitted the solicitor of the Supreme Court of
England and Wales and of the Supreme Court of Hong Kong in 1981 and
1982 respectively.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, Stephen JP, aged 62, joined the Group in 1997 and

is the Chairman of Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
committee. He is also the Chief Executive Officer of OSK Holdings Hong
Kong Limited and has 38 years of experience in the securities and investment
industry. Mr Hui had for years been serving as a Council Member and Vice
Chairman of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, member of the Advisory
Committee of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission, Director
of the Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited, a member of the
Listing Committee of the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and
was also an appointed member of the Securities and Futures Appeal Tribunal.
Mr. Hui was appointed by the Government of the HKSAR a Justice of the
Peace in 2004 and was also appointed a member of the Zhuhai Municipal
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference in
2006. He is at present a member of the Committee on Real Estate Investment
Trusts of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission. Mr. Hui is

also a member of the Standing Committee on Company Law Reform, an
appointed member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
Investigation Panel A and member of Government “Appointees” (independent
member) of Appeal Panel of the Travel Industry Council of Hong Kong.

Mr. Hui also serves as independent non-executive director of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited, Chun Wo Development Holdings Limited,
Jiuzhou Development Company Limited, Lifestyle International Holdings
Limited and Frasers Property (China) Limited whose shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. LO Mun Lam, Raymond, aged 56, joined the Group since 2004. He was
elected Chairman of the Board on 12th April 2005 and is the Chairman of

the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee. Mr.

Lo is the Chairman of a private equity firm with interest in various business
sectors. He was previously served as advisor, director and financial strategist
in many multidisciplinary listed and major companies. Professionally, Mr.

Lo is a Fellow Member and a Corporate Finance Designate of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England & Wales, a Counselor of Real Estate, USA
and a Fellow Member of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors, UK. He is
also a member of the International Bar Association and a Certified Hospitality
Educator. Mr. Lo is currently director of two other listed companies in Hong
Kong.

Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander aged 51, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director, and a member of both the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee, of the Company with effect
from 24th July 2008. Mr. TAI graduated from Victoria University of
Wellington in New Zealand with a degree in Bachelor of Commerce and
Administration in 1982 and became an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants in 1983. Mr. TAI has extensive
accountancy, corporate finance and investment experience in Hong Kong
and overseas. Mr. TAI is a shareholder and an executive director of Access
Capital Limited, a licensed corporation under the SFO to conduct Type 1
(dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising on securities), Type 6 (advising on
corporate finance) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities. Mr.
TAl is also an independent non-executive director of Honghua Group Limited
(Stock Code:196) listed in Hong Kong.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Senior Management

Mr. AU Kwok Kau, aged 60, is the co-founder and was the General Manager
of the Group since 1992. He has become the Group General Manager since
2007. Mr Au is responsible for overall administration of the Group. He has
over 37 years of experience in the jewellery industry in Hong Kong.

Miss Irene CHEUNG, aged 32, is the Legal Affairs Manager of the Group.
She holds a Bachelor’s of Arts Degree from the University of Toronto and

a Law Degree from Osgoode Hall of Canada. She was admitted as solicitor
and barrister in Ontario, Canada in 2003, where she practised Commercial
and Family Law. She joined the Group in 2005 and is responsible for the
administration and coordination of the Group’s legal affairs. Miss Cheung

is currently a member of the Law Society of Upper Canada and an associate
member of the Law Society of Hong Kong. She is the daughter-in-law of
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, the Group’s Chief Executive and the spouse of Mr.
WONG Ho Lung, Danny, Director of the Company.

Miss CHUNG Vai Ping, Icy, 39, is the Product Development Manager of
the Group. She joined the Group in 1990 and is responsible for the product
development of the Group. She has won the Best of Show Award with her
design “Flashing” in the 2nd Hong Kong Jewellery Design Competition. She
received the GIA Diamonds Graduate title in 2004.

Mr. FUNG Chi Ming, Fergus, aged 55, joined the Group in 2004 as Senior
Manager in Administration and Human Resources, he was re-titled in 2009

as Senior General Affairs Manager with prime responsibility for the Group’s
shop decoration and engineering works. Mr. Fung obtained a Master’s Degree
in Business Administration and a Bachelor’s Degree in Social Science through
education in Hong Kong. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Fung has acquired
extensive experience in human resources, business and project management
in various industries and also has substantial exposure for operations in Hong
Kong and China.

Mr. LEUNG Tak Fai, Kelvin, aged 46, joined the Group as Internal Audit
Manager since 2002. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
the Information Systems Audit and Control Association. Being a Certified
Information Systems Auditor, he holds a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration. He has over 16 years of internal auditing experience.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Senior Management (Continued)

Miss LEUNG Wai Sheung, Garry, aged 41, is the Corporate Affairs Manager
of the Group. She holds a professional Diploma in China Economy and
Finance, a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration and a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration. She joined the Group in 1994 and is
responsible for the Group’s coordination of project development, corporate
affairs, company secretarial matters and corporate communications. She is a
member of the Youth Committee of the Federation of Hong Kong Guangdong
Community Organizations Limited.

Miss LI Wai Ki, Vickie, aged 53, is the Jewellery Design Director of the
Group. She joined the Group in 1996 and is responsible for product design
and development. Miss Li has over 32 years of experience in jewellery design.
She won several international design awards including the 1st Greater China
Trophy For International Jadeite Jewellery Design Competition — Premium
Award, the 3rd, 4th and 5th Tahitian Pearl Trophy Asia Brooch & Parure
Category-Champion Award. And “Colourful World”, the brooch designed

by Miss Li, has won two top awards in the 9th Hong Kong Jewellery Design
Competition, including the Best of Show Award and the Craftsmanship &
Technology Award.

Dr. LING Hay Ming, Derek, aged 42, joined the Group in 2001 as L.T.
Manager and the Project Manager of Jewellworld.com Limited, a subsidiary
of the Company. He obtained his Master’s Degree in Business Administration,
Bachelor’s Degree in Computer Engineering from Santa Clara University in
California, U.S.A and his Doctor’s Degree in Business Administration from
The University of Newcastle in Australia. Prior to joining the Group, Dr.

Ling had over 10 years of business consulting and management experience in
U.S.A. and Hong Kong. He is at present the Vice President, HK Men’s Team
Captain, Chairman of Coaches Development Committee and Development
Committee, Committee Member of Tournament Committee, Elite Committee,
League Management Committee and Education & Qualifications Committee
of the Hong Kong Tennis Association.

Mr. TSANG Wai Hong, aged 42, joined the Group in 2006 as Senior Project
Manager and is responsible for the system development management. He
received a Master’s Degree in E-commerce and Internet Computing and a
Bachelor’s Degree in Computer Studies from the University of Hong Kong.
Mr. Tsang has over 16 years of experience in information technology and
management.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. TSUI Kin Wah, Tommy, aged 51, is the Laboratory Director of the
Group. Mr. Tsui joined the Group in 1995 and has over 19 years of experience
in purchasing and gemstone identification. Mr. Tsui is an Executive
Committee Member of the Hong Kong Gemological Association and a fellow
member of Gemological Association of Great Britain. Besides, Mr. Tsui is

a laboratory representative and approved signatory under the Hong Kong
Laboratory Accreditation Scheme. At June 2007, Mr. Tsui has been appointed
by Hong Kong Council for Academic Accreditation as a Sector/Subject
Specialist for a 3-year period.

Miss WONG Hau Yeung, Shirley, aged 37, is the Group Deputy General
Manager of the Group. Miss Wong joined the Group in 2004 and is
responsible for the development and operation management for the business
in the Mainland and co-ordinates human resources management and training.
She received a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from University
of Southern Queensland. Besides, Miss Wong is the fellow of the Institute of
Global Managers, the Chartered Human Resources Consultant of Chartered
Association of Business Administrator and the Honorary Chairperson of The
Association for Professional Business Administrators. She has over 15 years
of experience in the jewellery industry in Hong Kong.

Mr. WONG Wai Tong, Samuel, aged 48, joined the Group in 1998. Presently,
he is the Business Director. He has over 32 years of manufacturing and
purchasing experience in jewellery and gold industry. He is responsible for
the purchasing of diamonds, gems and gold products of the Group and the
operation of the Company. Mr. Wong is the brother of Mr. WONG Wai
Sheung, Chief Executive of the Group.
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RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the retirement scheme operated by the Group are set out in note 3(r)
to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors’ service contracts requires the Company to give a
period of notice of more than one year or to pay compensation or make other
payments equivalent to more than one year’s emoluments (other than statutory
compensation). Pursuant to the Bye-laws, one-third of the Directors shall
retire from office by rotation at each annual general meeting of the Company.

The fees and other emoluments of Directors are determined by reference
to industry norm and market conditions, with discretionary bonus on
performance awarded to Executive Directors.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 34 to the financial statements, no other contracts

of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, its
subsidiaries or its holding company was a party, and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions entered into by the Group during the year
ended 31st March 2009 as disclosed in note 34(b), (c) & (d) to the financial
statements do not constitute connected transactions under the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The related party transaction, which also constitutes a connected transaction
under the Listing Rules, is set out in note 34(a) to the financial statements and
disclosed in accordance with the Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as follows:

The connected transaction in respect of the tenancy agreement entered into
with Mr. WONG Wai Sheung’s father, for the lease of a retail shop of the
Group was, in the opinion of the directors, entered into on normal commercial
terms which are fair and reasonable so far as the shareholders of the Company
are concerned.
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DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS FROM RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its subsidiaries or its holding
company a party to any arrangement to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the year under review, the percentages of sales for the year attributable
to the Group’s major customers are as follows:
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2009 2008
The largest customer BREF 10.5% 16.7%
Five largest customers combined HARKEF &7 12.3% 17.9%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had interest in the major customers noted above.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to the Group’s major
suppliers are as follows:
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2009 2008
The largest supplier IR L IE TS 12.2% 11.5%
Five largest suppliers combined AL R HERERS &5t 29.3% 24.4%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had interest in the major suppliers noted above.

BANK LOANS, OVERDRAFTS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

At 31st March 2009, the Group had bank loans, overdrafts or other borrowings
totalling approximately HK$169,000,000 (2008: HK$273,000,000).
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
laws although there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws of
Bermuda.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES OF
THE LISTING RULES

Throughout the year, the Company was in compliance with the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices as set out in the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

In compliance with paragraph 14 of the Code of Best Practice (applicable
before 1st January 2005), the Board has established an audit committee
comprising all independent non-executive directors, to monitor the accounting
and financial reporting practices and internal control systems of the Company.
Since 1st April 2008, the audit committee has held several meetings to
consider matters including the 2008 annual report of the Company, internal
controls, the unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial information
for the six months ended 30th September 2008, the 2009 annual report of the
Company and the Group’s IT control environment.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from 26th August
2009 to 31st August 2009, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the final dividend,
all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s Share Registrars in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on 25th August 2009.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of its directors as at 22nd July 2009, being the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of the annual report, the public float of shares in the
Company has remained above the minimum percentage required by The
Stock Exchange throughout the year.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

By order of the Board,
LO Mun Lam, Raymond
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22nd July 2009
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

¥ 1 A% BB

PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS

EORKESFMEBAM

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF LUK FOOK HOLDINGS
(INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Luk Fook Holdings
(International) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,

the “Group”) set out on pages 54 to 131, which comprise the consolidated
and company balance sheets as at 31st March 2009, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation

and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31st March

2009 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22nd July 2009
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

i i e R

(For the year ended 31st March 2009)
(#£20094F3 H31 H IL4F )

2009 2008
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
Rt T#IL TG
(Restated)
(F31)
(Note 3(v)(ii))
(Bt 5¥3(v)(i))
Turnover B 6 3,856,984 3,367,182
Cost of sales S A 9 (3,038,697) (2,529,490)
Gross profit LA 818,287 837,692
Other income HAtulg A 7 130,219 93,339
Selling and distribution costs B Ry S 2 9 (565,564) (466,017)
Administrative expenses THER 9 (67,995) (62,118)
Other gains/(losses), net HAbde st~ (k518) > 1F4H 8 3,444 (30,537)
Operating profit KB A 318,391 372,359
Finance income B A 4,702 4,113
Finance costs AR5 (8,302) (3,429)
Finance (costs)/income, net AR (E ) WA - AR 10 (3,600) 684
Share of results of an associate AL — KBt N 7 24 20 | 1230 | (856)
Profit before taxation RS i ¥ A1) 316,021 372,187
Taxation BiIE 11 (37,781) (54,235)
Profit for the year A N i A1) 278,240 317,952
Profit attributable to: JEAG A -
Equity holders of the Company EN/NGIL T ESESE SN 12 275,160 313,989
Minority interests DR R A 3,080 3,963
278,240 317,952
Earnings per share for profit attributable to AN FEIRERR R A
equity holders of the Company JRRE A i AR ) A 22 13
Basic FHA HKS55.9 cents HK63.8 cents
55.9%:il 63.8751l1
Diluted Wi HK55.9 cents HK63.8 cents
55.9%4l 63.8 ¥l
Dividends it 14 83,726 125,590

The notes on pages 59 to 131 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

R EE AR

(As at 31st March 2009)
(74200943 H31H)
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2009 2008
Note HK$000 HK$°000
W5 T BRI
(Restated)
(F31)
(Note 3(v)(1))
(FtEE3()()
ASSETS E
Non-current assets e EE
Property, plant and equipment VENN Y& 17 107,621 117,463
Leasehold land and land use rights B J 4 Ho it A 18 17,318 17,035
Interests in an associate _ﬁé — RN A 2 R g 20 1,955 874
Trading licence & i 3(f) 1,080 1,080
Rental deposits HEtks 21 25,907 24,624
Deferred tax assets R AER TH e 29 14,240 14,915
oo desnad | 175991
Current assets MENEE
Inventories & 22 1,218,880 1,245,500
Trade receivables “\ FE HRIH 24 37,081 33,533
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables g ﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬁ T Fotth iR TE 21 43,747 45,712
Amount due from an associate JEN— s wl AR H 20 6,491 19,888
Cash and cash equivalents B KB EHEY) 31 280,125 185,380
,,,,,,,,, 1,586,324 | 1530013
Total assets MR 1,754,445 1,706,004
EQUITY Wi
Capital and reserves attributable to AN Al e A REAG
the Company’s equity holders B R fib
Share capital A 27(a) 49,250 49,250
Share premium B A9 1 27(b) 58,884 58,884
Reserves i 28(a) 1,088,335 897,843
Proposed dividends BEIRIE, 14 59,101 76,339
N 1,255,570 1,082,316
Minority interests DRI AR 17,657 16,049
Total equity Wm0 1273227 | . 1,098,365
LIABILITIES i
Non-current liabilities I {fﬁﬁbﬁ 18
Deferred tax liabilities EIEBLH AR 29 2,980 74
Employee benefit obligations 1§ BAaFI AT 30 22,733 8,710
B3 8784
Current liabilities TEA R
Trade payables, other payables and accruals EEJWEENEEIE - HAbRERTHRIA
LR 25 258,699 284,744
Short-term bank loans %%Eﬁ,wk 26 169,000 273,000
Taxation payable HERTBLE 27,806 41,111
,,,,,,,,,, 455,505 | 59885
Total liabilities Gy 481218 | 607,639
Total equity and liabilities T A A AR 1,754,445 1,706,004
Net current assets ZJI@}J HREWE 1,130,819 931,158
Total assets less current liabilities AR ) £ R 1,298,940 1,107,149
Wong Wai Sheung Tse Moon Chuen
WHRN LR
Director Director

The notes on pages 59 to 131 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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BALANCE SHEET

u AR

(As at 31st March 2009)
(12200943 H31 H)

2009 2008
B3 SR T
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
ASSETS < ¢
Non-current assets JE )
Investments in subsidiaries Y YNGIEv 4 <y 19 298,887 298,887
Current assets A
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE M I oG/ ) R T 23 440,520 465,575
Prepayments TEATRIR 21 - 31
Cash and cash equivalents B4 KB &5 EY) 31 1,208 1,122
441,728 466,728
Total assets MR 740,615 765,615
EQUITY B2
Capital and reserves A S feti
Share capital i 27(a) 49,250 49,250
Share premium et A 27(b) 58,884 58,884
Reserves G4 28(b) 353,456 327,289
Proposed dividends PR B S 14 59,101 76,339
520,691 511,762
LIABILITIES 4%
Current liabilities i) AR
Amounts due to subsidiaries JREAST Ff a8 2 i) R T 23 60,378 -
Other payables o Ath 8 A5 HRIE 25 546 853
Short-term bank loans FIHASRAT Bk 26 159,000 253,000
219,924 253,853
Total equity and liabilities WA I AR AR 740,615 765,615
Net current assets ) B R E 221,804 212,875
Total assets less current liabilities AR RE OB A E 520,691 511,762
Wong Wai Sheung Tse Moon Chuen
Wl R W A
Director Director
HE I

The notes on pages 59 to 131 are an integral part of these consolidated financial 4559 2 131 B F) i ik /% &5 45 1 5 #k 3 119 5 i &1
statements. g e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(For the year ended 31st March 2009)
(#£20094F3 H31 H IE4F )

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARl R R A AN
Share Share Minority Total
capital  premium  Reserves Subtotal interests equity
HY
JBeAs By f ] At ROHER: HRER
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$°000  HK$'000  HK$'000
T T T T T T
(Note 28(a))
(FF28(a))
For the year ended BE20094:3)131H
31st March 2009 AR
As at Ist April 2008 1200844 H 1H 49,250 58884 974182 1,082,316 16,049 1,098,365
Exchange differences bt 7245 - - (845) (845) 98 (747)
Deficits on revaluation of properties W E Al - - o7 o7 - 97
Net (loss)/income recognised directly BN ERRERZ
in equity (BR) WA T - - (942) (942) 98 (844)
Profit for the year A JE i A - - 275160 275,160 3080 278240
Total recognised income for the year SR BETERR 2 N - - 274218 274218 3178 277,396
Dividends paid EATRE - - (100964)  (100.964) - (100,964)
Liquidation of a subsidiary — KBTI R - - - - (1,570 (1,570)
As at 31st March 2009 420094F3H31H 49,250 58,884  1,147436 1255570 17,657 1273227
For the year ended BE20084:3)131H
31st March 2008 AR
As at Ist April 2007 2007454 H 1 H 49,250 58,884 741962 850,09 12789 862,885
Exchange differences e ot 22 % - - 21,231 21,31 933 22,164
Surplus on revaluation of properties WEZ mER = = 427 47 = 427
Net income recognised directly in equity  EL4%FAM 43 fRR.2
oNEE = - 21,658 21,658 933 22,591
Profit for the year A JE T A = - 313989 313,989 3,963 317,952
Total recognised income for the year AFETERR 2 N A = - 335,647 335,647 4896 340,543
Dividends paid BEARE = ~ (103427)  (103.427) - (103427
Deemed disposal of a subsidiary AL E— KB A - = = = (1,636) (1,636)
As at 31st March 2008 J120084E3H31H 49,250 58,884 974,182 1,082,316 16049 1,098,365

The notes on pages 59 to 131 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

P Bl AR

(For the year ended 31st March 2009)
(#£20094F3 H31 H IL4F )

2009 2008
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
it T Tt
Cash flows from operating activities BTG ) 2 Bl
Net cash generated from/(used in) SEEEA () Z
operations B TR 32(a) 387,795 (57,870)
Hong Kong profits tax paid CAT AU RIS (41,895) (48,502)
Overseas income taxes paid EANES NS R (5,610) (1,835)
Net cash generated from/(used in) EENEES (TR Z
operating activities Bl 340,290 (108,207)
Cash flows from investing activities BOETE B 2 B e R
Purchase of property, plant and equipment WEE W - WS Bt
and payment for leasehold land P J S AN AH 5
and land use rights Ko 3t fki A (29,702) (51,706)
Disposal of property, plant and equipment HEYIE - BB Kk 1,459 162
Interest received LR E 495 1,882
Net cash outflow from deemed disposal WA E—RME AR Z
of a subsidiary B U R AR 32(b) - (1,517)
Net cash used in investing activities T B T 3 4 A (27,748) (51,179)
Cash flows from financing activities PV ) 2 B4 I
Proceeds from short-term bank loans SEIAERAT BT A5 A 377,000 273,000
Repayment of short-term bank loans fE2 BRI T K (481,000) =
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts SRAT R B S 2 FE (8,302) (3,429)
Dividends paid EIRAE (100,964) (103,427)
Net cash (used in)/generated from FETEE (BT ) B A
financing activities BB 14 (213,266) 166,144
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents Bl KB &5 EY
IR 99,276 6,758
Cash and cash equivalents at 1st April R4 1 H 2 B4 R 4% B Y 185,380 174,534
Exchange differences [ifE S0, 25 %0 (4,531) 4,088
Cash and cash equivalents at 31st March W3A31H 2 Bla R ESEY 31 280,125 185,380

The notes on pages 59 to 131 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o8 205 i o Wi ke

GENERAL INFORMATION

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda on 3rd September 1996 as a company with
limited liability under the Companies Act of Bermuda. The address
of its registered office is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street Hamilton
HM 12 Bermuda.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the retailing and wholesaling of
gold jewellery and gold ornaments, gem-set jewellery and gemstones
and other accessory items.

The Company’s shares are listed on the main board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated, and have been approved for
issue by the board of directors on 22nd July 2009.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”). The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention except that certain
financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value, as
appropriate.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements,
are disclosed in Note 5.

—eE B
ANHREE (B A RRA R (T4 D) 7R
19964£9 H 3 H 16 11 HE 2 AL i 11 5 A 7l
T2 R B 2 A BRI o L SR
#b 31k & Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 12 Bermuda °

AN R R A ) (SRR A ) &
TR A B B A~ R A R
1 DA R A E B 2 Z 45 R 3RS -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Y e M ik

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

The following amendments and interpretations to the standards are
mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 1st April
2008. The adoption of these amendments and interpretations to
the standards do not have any significant impact to the results and
financial position of the Group.

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reclassification of Financial Assets
(Amendments)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury

Share Transactions

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their Interaction

P ()

DL HE RIMERT Kt B ZE R 2008 4E4 A 1 H
o2 A% B G 2 Gt 0 e B AT - PR
5% S ME QMG T B R M A A ) > 2
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553957 M A its HE
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— R 119E e B Ay
5
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

The following new standards, amendments and interpretations to
the standards have been issued but are not effective for the financial
year ended 31st March 2009 and have not been early adopted by the

Group.

HKFRS 1 (Revised)

HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27
(Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

HKEFRS 8

First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards
(effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1st July
2009)

Cost of an Investment in a
Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled
Entity or Associates (effective for
annual periods beginning on or
after 1st July 2009)

Share-based Payment Vesting
Conditions and Cancellations
(effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1st January
2009)

Business Combinations (effective for
annual periods beginning on or
after 1st July 2009)

Financial Instruments Disclosures
— Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments (effective for
annual periods beginning on or
after 1st January 2009)

Operating Segments (effective for
annual periods beginning on or
after 1st January 2009)

B PILAE (4y)
PUR VA 2 BT e R - HERIERT Kt R
1 A AR E 2009453 H 31 H 1E BABUAE B A=
B AR [ 51 A4 PR AN o

T 5 i e )
55158 (RAEFT)

7 A e o e )

F1RE R

HERIZ52755%
(CHEN)
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55358 (RAEFT)
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BT UEFTA)
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HEHI 55 858
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et HE R (742009
FETA1H SR %
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L[] 45 ) B A =
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SV 5 o ik

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1
(Amendment)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKIFRIC)-Int 9 and
HKAS 39

HKIFRIC)-Int 13

HKIFRIC)-Int 15

Presentation of Financial Statements
(effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1st January
2009)

Borrowing Costs (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1st
January 2009)

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1st
July 2009)

Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation
(effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1st January
2009)

Eligible Hedged Items (effective
for annual periods beginning on
or after 1st July 2009)

Embedded Derivatives (effective for
annual periods ending on or after
30th June 2009)

Customer Loyalty Programmes
(effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1st July
2008)

Agreements for the Construction
of Real Estate (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1st
January 2009)
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a
Foreign Operation (effective for
annual periods beginning on or

after 1st October 2008)

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to
Owners (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1st
July 2009)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 17

HK(IFRIC)-Int 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers
(effective for transfers of assets
from customers received on or

after 1st July 2009)

HKAS 1 (Revised) requires all owner changes in equity to be
presented in a statement of changes in equity. All comprehensive
income is presented in one statement of comprehensive income

or in two statements (a separate income statement and a statement

of comprehensive income). It requires presenting a statement of
financial position as at the beginning of the earliest comparative
period in a complete set of financial statements when there are
retrospective adjustments or reclassification adjustments. However,
it does not change the recognition, measurement or disclosure of
specific transactions and other events required by other HKFRSs. The
Group will apply HKAS 1 (Revised) from 1st April 2009. The Group
is in the process of assessing their impact on the Group’s results and
financial position.

HKEFRS 7 (Amendments) increase the disclosures requirements
about fair value measurement and reinforces existing principles for
disclosure about liquidity risk. The amendments introduce a three-
level hierarchy for fair value measurement disclosures and require
some specific quantitative disclosures for financial instruments on
the lowest level in the hierarchy. It also requires entities to provide
additional disclosures about the relative reliability of fair value
measurements. These disclosures will help to improve comparability
between entities about the effects of fair value measurements.

In addition, the amendments clarify and enhance the existing
requirements for the disclosure of liquidity risk primarily requiring
a separate liquidity risk analysis for derivative and non-derivative
financial liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Y e M ik

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

HKEFRS 8 replaces HKAS 14 and aligns segment reporting with

the requirements of the US standard SFAS 131, “Disclosures about
segments of an enterprise and related information”. The new standard
requires a “management approach”, under which segment information
is presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting
purposes. The Group will apply HKFRS 8 from 1st April 2009. The
expected impact is still being assessed in detail by management, but it
appears likely that the number of reportable segments, as well as the
manner in which the segments are reported, will change in a manner
that is consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker.

The effect that the adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised), HKAS 27
(Revised) and HK(IFRIC)-Int 17 will have on the results and
financial position of the Group will depend on the incidence and
timing of business combinations occurring on or after 1st April 2010.
The directors anticipate that the adoption of other new standards,
amendments and interpretations to standards will not result in a
significant impact on the results and financial position of the Group.

In addition, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
also published a number of amendments for the existing standards
under its annual improvement project. These amendments are not
expected to have a significant financial impact on the results and
financial position of the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

(a) Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31st March.

(i) Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than
one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when assessing whether
the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to
account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the
Group. The cost of an acquisition is measured as

the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date
of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the
acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent

of any minority interests. The excess of the cost of
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share
of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired,
including any contingent liabilities assumed, the
difference is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SV 5 o ik

3  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3  FE&HECRME @)
POLICIES (Continued)
(a) Consolidation (Continued) (@) HEWRH @D

(i) Subsidiaries (Continued) @) K& 2 ml ()
Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised EHAFMZES  HiR R
gains on transactions between group companies are REEHZE Wi s S
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated W IE %3 7 s I R
unless the transaction provides evidence of an FE I BLUUE > 7RISR
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting RN Er 8 o B A
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where ZBRTBOR O AR T B
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies BEH) > DARECR BLA AL R
adopted by the Group. A2 BUOR—3L -
In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments RN Z EERAER
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for Ao R A R 2 AE TS
impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are 22 A (BT AR D (R 1R 488
accounted for by the Company on the basis of HFIHR < BiJE A Rl Ses m
dividend received and receivable. AR T R R BB R

FEUEBIHR o

(ii) Transactions with minority interests (ii) 2D BRI S
The Group applies a policy of treating transactions of AR T —HBUR
equity interest in a subsidiary with minority interests A FLEL D R RO T 2 i
as transactions with parties external to the Group. REZZ 5 458 17 AR 4 [ LA S
Disposals of equity interest in a subsidiary owned N LEATRIZC ) - WD
by the Group to minority interests result in gains SRR B A
or losses for the Group are recorded in the income TR A2 [ 1) 8 e A 4R
statement. Purchases of equity interest in a subsidiary fi R iR o ) D BUR A
not already owned by the Group from minority ‘A A D RO T 2B B
interests result in goodwill, being the difference P o A A ST AT A
between any consideration paid and the relevant share AR BELAF 0 JRE A o e
acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the J A R A HRTET (R
subsidiary. FEH o

(iii)  Associates i) HELA]
Associates are entities over which the Group has Tt ) 8 A 2 B e
significant influence but not control, generally A KB R A B
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and T - H— R b20% 2
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates 50% R R AEFE R E 2 '
are accounted for using the equity method of o RIE A R Z G TS
accounting and are initially recognised at cost. The DIRE £ g 5k ARRI0) 26
Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill P AERERT o A5 R
(net of any accumulated impairment loss) identified Wi s W) 2 BB B Wi

on acquisition.

B ) - 7 R (TR AT AT
Rt EER) ©



3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(iii)

Associates (Continued)

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in the income statement,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in
reserves is recognised in reserves. The cumulative
post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s
share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds

its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the associates. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed
when necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations
engaged in providing products or services that are subject

to risks and returns that are different from those of other
business segments. A geographical segment is engaged in
providing products or services within a particular economic
environment that are subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of segments operating in other economic
environments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SV 5 o ik

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3

POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Foreign currency translation

(0)

(i)

(iii)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented

in HK$, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated

into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-
inflationary economy) that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are translated
into the presentation currency as follows:

(@) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

2) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

3) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component of equity.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings comprise retail shops and other properties such

as office premises. Retail shops are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Properties other than retail shops (“Properties™) are
stated at valuation less subsequent accumulated depreciation.
The valuation, being fair value at the date of valuation, is
determined by the directors based on independent valuations
which are performed at least every three years. In the
intervening years, the directors review the carrying value of
the buildings and adjustment is made where there has been

a material change. Increases in valuation are credited to the
revaluation reserve in shareholders’ equity. Decreases in
valuation are first offset against previous increases of the
same property and are thereafter expensed in the income
statement. Each year the difference between depreciation
based on the revaluated carrying amount of the asset expensed
in the income statement and depreciation based on the
asset’s original cost is transferred from revaluation reserve to
retained earnings.

Buildings are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
unexpired period of leases or the expected useful lives of the
buildings to the Group, whichever is shorter.

Other tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Cost
includes the purchase price of the asset and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
expensed in the income statement during the financial period
in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3

POLICIES (Continued)

(@

(e)

®

Property, plant and equipment (Continued) (d)

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to write off

the cost less accumulated impairment losses of each asset

to their residual values over their estimated useful lives as

follows:

Leasehold improvements 20% or over the unexpired
lease period, whichever

is shorter
Furniture and fixtures and 20%
computer equipment
Plant and machinery 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 3 (g)).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
net proceeds with carrying amount of the relevant assets and
are included in the income statement.

Leasehold land and land use rights (e)
Leasehold land and land use rights are stated at cost less

accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses,

(if any). Cost represents consideration paid for the rights to use

the land on which various plants and buildings are generally

situated for a period from 30 to 70 years. Amortisation of

leasehold land and land use rights is calculated on a straight-

line basis over the period of the lease.

Trading licence (f)
Trading licence with indefinite useful life represents a

membership in Chinese Gold and Silver Exchange Society

and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if

any.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(g

(h)

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
investment in an associate and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet been
available for use are not subject to amortisation/depreciation
and are at least tested annually for impairment. Assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units).

Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered

an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date. Where an impairment loss
subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount to the extent that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the income
statement.

Inventories

Inventories represent merchandises and are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on the
first-in, first-out basis. The cost of merchandise comprises
raw materials, direct labour and other direct costs. It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss and loans

and receivables. The classification depends on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of the Group’s financial assets at
initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at every
reporting date.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives
are classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets.

(ii) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in
current assets, except for those with maturities greater
than 12 months after the balance sheet date which are
classified as non-current assets. Loans and receivables
include trade receivables, other receivables, deposits,
amount due from an associate, amounts due from
subsidiaries and cash and cash equivalents.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(1

Financial assets (Continued)

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade-date - the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets

not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed

in the income statement. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are
initially recognised at fair value and subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
provision for impairment.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
“financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’ category
are presented in the income statement within other gains/
losses, in the period in which they arise. Dividend income
from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised in the income statement as part of other income
when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current
bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active (and
for unlisted securities), the Group established fair value by
using valuation techniques. These include the use of recent
arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments that
are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis and
option pricing models, making maximum use of market inputs
and relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3

POLICIES (Continued)

1)

(k)

)

Receivables

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision
for impairment of receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect
all amounts due according to the original term of receivables.
The amount of the provision is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the assets is reduced through
the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss
is recognised in the income statement within administrative
expenses. When a receivable is uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account for receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against administrative expenses in the income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts, if any.

Bank overdrafts, if any, are shown within borrowings in
current liabilities on the balance sheet.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date

a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at their fair values. The method of recognising the
resulting gains or losses depends on whether the derivative

is designated and qualified as a hedging instrument, and if

so, the nature of the item being hedged. Since the derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Group do not qualify
for hedge accounting, changes in fair value of any derivative
financial instruments are recognised immediately in the
income statement.
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3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3

POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Financial liabilities and equity
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the
Group are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument. Financial
liabilities (including trade payables) are initially measured at
fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method. An equity instrument is
any contract that does not meet the definition of financial
liability and evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs,
net of tax, directly attributable to the issue of new shares are
shown in equity as a deduction from the proceeds.

(m)  Financial guarantee contract liabilities
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially
at their fair values and are subsequently measured at the
higher of (i) the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in the income
statement over the period of the relevant liabilities and (ii)
the amount of which the Group is obliged to reimburse the
recipient under the financial guarantee contracts.

(o) Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated
at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in
the income statement over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

(p) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any
qualifying assets are capitalised during the period of time that
is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use. All other borrowing costs are charged to the income
statement in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(q)

(r)

Current and deferred income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date in the countries where the Group operates and
generates taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation
and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the relevant tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes. However, the deferred income
tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or a liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax

is determined using rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates except
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the balance
sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(r) Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Profit sharing and bonus plans

Provisions for profit sharing and bonus plans are
recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services rendered
by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made.

Pension obligations

Hong Kong

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme’) which
is registered under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance in Hong Kong. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held in a separately administered
fund. The MPF Scheme is generally funded by
payments from employees and by the Group.

The Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme

are expensed as incurred and are reduced by the
employer’s voluntary contribution forfeited from
the MPF Scheme by those employees who leave the
scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions.

The People’s Republic of China (“PRC”)

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC,
the Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement
schemes for its relevant employees in the PRC.

The Group’s relevant employees make monthly
contributions to the schemes at 10% to 13% of

the relevant income (comprising wages, salaries,
allowances and bonuses), while the Group contributes
24% to 37% of such income and has no further
obligations for the actual payment of post-retirement
benefits beyond the contributions. The state-
sponsored retirement schemes are responsible for the
entire post-retirement benefit obligations payable to
the retired employees.

The Group’s contributions to the state-sponsored
retirement schemes are expensed as incurred and are
fully and immediately vested in the employees.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

(s)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(iv) Long service payment
The Group’s net obligation in respect of lump
sum long service amounts payable on cessation
of employment in certain circumstances under the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is the amount of
future benefit that employees have earned in return
for their service in the current and prior periods.
The obligation is calculated using the projected unit
credit method by a qualified actuary, discounted to
its present value, and the fair value of any related
plan assets is deducted. The discount rate is the yield
at balance sheet date on Exchange Fund Notes that
have maturity dates approximating the terms of the
Group’s obligations.

Revenue and income recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sales of goods and services
in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is
shown net of value-added tax, sales returns and discounts,
after eliminated sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured and it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group. The amount of
revenue is not considered to be reliably measurable until all
contingencies relating to the sale have been resolved. The
Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and
the specifics of each arrangement. Revenue and income are
recognised as follows:
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(s) Revenue and income recognition (Continued)
Turnover represents revenues recognised on sales of goods,
and are recognised as follows:

()

(i)

Sales of goods — wholesales

Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity has
delivered products to the wholesaler, the wholesaler
has full discretion over the channel and price to sell
the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the wholesaler’s acceptance of the
products. Delivery does not occur until the products
have been delivered to the specified location, the risks
of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the
wholesaler, and either the wholesaler has accepted
the products in accordance with sales contract, the
acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Group has
objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have
been satisfied.

Sales of goods — retail

Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity
sells a product to the customer. Retail sales are usually
in cash or by credit card. It is the Group’s policy to
sell its jewellery products to the end customers with

a right of return within one year at a certain discount
on the original selling price. Accumulated experience
is used to estimate and provide for such returns at the
time of sale.

Royalty income in respect of the use of the Group’s
trademarks is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance
with the substance of the relevant agreements.

Consultancy fee income and service income in respect of
technical support and consultancy services are recognised in
the period the services are provided.

Rebate from import agents is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the rebate will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3

POLICIES (Continued)

(s)  Revenue and income recognition (Continued)
Value-added tax refunds are recognised at their fair values in
the income statement when there is reasonable assurance that
the refund will be received and all the attaching conditions
will be complied with.

Interest income from bank deposits is recognised on a time
proportion basis using the effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

(t) Operating leases (as a leasee)
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to
the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease. When a component of the lease payment which
is not fixed but is based on future amount of a factor, other
than with the passage of time, such as percentage of sales or
concessionaire fees, the amount is recognised as expenses as
it arises.

(u) Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders or directors, where appropriate.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
(v)  Comparative figures
1) In previous year, the balance of employee benefit

obligations was included in trade payables, other
payables and accruals line item under the current
liabilities in the balance sheet because of its
materiality. During the year, management has
revisited the presentation of employee benefit
obligations and consider that the liability should be
separately disclosed in the balance sheet of current
year’s financial statements under non-current
liabilities as it is non-current in nature. Consequently,
the amount of HK$8,710,000 as at 31st March 2008
was reclassified from current to non-current liabilities
to conform with current year’s presentation.

(i1) In previous year, gain/loss on derivative financial
instruments — trading of gold was recognised as part
of selling and distribution costs. In preparing the
31st March 2009 financial statements, management
has determined that such gains and losses should
be included in other gains or losses line item in the
current year’s income statement as they represent
inflow or outflow of economic benefit to/from the
Group. To conform with current year’s presentation,
the loss of HK$31,815,000 incurred on trading
of gold for the year ended 31st March 2008 was
reclassified from selling and distribution costs to
other gains/(losses) line item.

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a)

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks,
including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair value
interest rate risks, credit risk, liquidity risk and commodity
price risk.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)

The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses

on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance. The Group uses derivative financial instruments
to manage certain risk exposures. The use of financial
derivatives to hedge certain risk exposures is governed by the
Group’s policies approved by the Board of Directors of the
Company.

(a)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong with

most of the transactions settled in HK$. The Group
also has retail and wholesale operations in the PRC,
Macau, Canada and the United States, of which
foreign exchange risk is considered insignificant.
Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial
transactions or recognised assets or liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s
functional currency. The Group is exposed to foreign
exchange risk from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to Renminbi (“RMB”) and the
United States Dollars (“US$”).

The Group manages its foreign exchange risk by
performing regular reviews of the Group’s net foreign
exchange exposures. The Group has not entered into
any forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge its
foreign exchange exposure as the directors are of the
view that the potential foreign exchange exposures
are not significant.

The Group’s assets and liabilities, and transactions
arising from its operations primarily do not expose the
Group to material foreign exchange risk. The Group’s
assets and liabilities are primarily denominated in the
respective group companies’ functional currency.

At 31st March 2009 and 2008, if RMB and US$ had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against HKS, with
all other variables held constant, profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$473,000 and
HK$1,202,000 higher/lower respectively.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates and the Group has no significant
interest-bearing assets and liabilities except for

the cash at bank and bank borrowings, details of
which have been disclosed in Notes 31 and 26. The
Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates is
mainly attributable to its borrowings. Borrowings
carry at floating rates expose the Group to cash

flow interest-rate risk. The Group has not used any
interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to interest
rate risks as management considers that the Group’s
borrowings are relatively short-term and insignificant
to the Group; any reasonable changes in interest

rate would not result in a significant change in the
Group’s results. Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is
presented for interest rate risk.

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of
credit risk. The carrying amounts of trade and other
receivables, deposits, amount due from an associate
and cash and cash equivalents included in the
consolidated balance sheet represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its
financial assets.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iii)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales
of products on credit terms are made to customers
with an appropriate credit history and the Group
performs periodic credit evaluations of its customers.
The Group’s concessionaire sales through department
stores are generally collectible within 30 days from
the invoice date while credit sales are generally on
credit terms within 90 days. Normally the Group
does not require collaterals from trade debtors. The
existing debtors have no significant defaults in the
past. The Group’s historical experience in collection
of trade and other receivables falls within the recorded
allowances and the directors are of the opinion that
adequate provision for uncollectible receivables, if
any, has been made.

The deposits, other receivables and amount due from
an associate are from counterparties with good credit
history. There is no history of defaults from these
counterparties.

As at 31st March 2009 and 2008, substantially all the
bank balances as detailed in Note 31 are held in major
financial institutions located in Hong Kong and the
PRC, which management believes are of high credit
quality. The Group has a policy to limit the amount
of credit exposure to any financial institution and
management does not expect any losses arising from
non-performance by these counterparties.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(v)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents
and the availability of funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities.

The Group’s primary cash requirements have been
for additions of and upgrades on property, plant and
equipment, payment on related debts and payment
for purchases and operating expenses. The Group
finances its working capital requirements through

a combination of internal resources and bank
borrowings, as necessary.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure it
maintains sufficient cash and cash equivalents and
has available funding through adequate amount of
committed credit facilities to meet its working capital
requirements.

The table below analyses the Group’s and the
Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the
balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows based on the earliest date on
which the Group and the Company can be required to

pay.
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4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4 W B4 B (@)

(a)  Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) V5 B L (40)
(iv)  Liguidity risk (Continued) @v) BB EE ()

Group
A4
Within 1 year
BER
HK$’000
T

As at 31st March 2009 20094¢3J131H

Trade payables, other payables and accruals & 5) AT HRTA ~ HoAth B A HRTH %

JREF R 258,699
Short-term bank loans FEHAERTT K 169,233
427,932

As at 31st March 2008 200843 31H

Trade payables, other payables and accruals & 5y MEATTARIE ~ HAhEAT IR TE K

JERT A 284,744
Short-term bank loans FE I ERAT FE K 273,663
558,407
Company
Y /|
Within 1 year
ER
HK$°000
TG

As at 31st March 2009 200943 31H
Other payables oAt AT HRTE 546
Short-term bank loans F I ERAT FE K 159,216
159,762

As at 31st March 2008 20084E3/131H
Other payables HoAth A AR TE 853

Short-term bank loans 5 BASRAT BEK 253,618

254,471



4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(v)

Commodity price risk

The Group is engaged in the sale of gold and
platinum ornaments. The gold and platinum markets
are influenced by global as well as regional supply
and demand conditions. A significant decline in
prices of gold and platinum could adversely affect
the Group’s financial performance. The Group uses
certain derivative financial instrument-trading of gold
contracts to reduce its exposure to fluctuations in

the price of gold. The derivative contracts are settled
every day end and the difference between the contract
price and market price is immediately recognised in
the income statement. As at 31st March 2009, the
notional value of the outstanding contracts amounted
to HK$106,785,000 (2008: HK$109,494,000).

At 31st March 20009, if the purchase price of gold and
platinum had increased or decreased by 5%, profit
for the year ended 31st March 2009 would have been
approximately HK$5,314,000 or HK$9,014,000
lower, respectively.

At 31st March 2008, if the purchase price of gold and
platinum had increased or decreased by 5%, profit
for the year ended 31st March 2008 would have been
approximately HK$ 4,880,000 or HK$5,118,000
lower, respectively.

Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets,
including cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other
receivables, deposits and amount due from an associate,

the Group’s financial liabilities, including trade and other
payables, accruals and short-term bank loans, approximate
their fair values due to their short maturities.
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4

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Fair value estimation (Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as derivative financial instruments-trading of
gold) is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet
date. The quoted market price used for financial assets held
by the Group is the current bid price.

The nominal values less any estimated credit adjustments
for financial assets and liabilities with a maturity of less than
one year are assumed to approximate their fair values. The
fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is
estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at
the current market interest rate that is available to the Group
for similar financial instruments.

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure
to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and make
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payments to shareholders
or obtain new bank borrowings.

The Group also monitors capital on the basis of gearing

ratio and the compliance of covenants of its borrowings.

The gearing ratio is calculated as net (cash)/ debt divided by
total capital. Net (cash)/debt is calculated as total borrowings
(including current and non-current borrowings as shown

in the consolidated balance sheet) less cash and cash
equivalents. Total capital is calculated as “equity”, as shown
in the consolidated balance sheet, plus net (cash)/debt.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(¢) Capital risk management (Continued)
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4  EREBEE B )
() EAHBEAYPE (40

The table below analyses the Group’s capital structure as at A AL MA20094F3 31 H Z &4
31st March 2009: BRRES TR R ¢

2009 2008

HK’000 HK’000

T#T Tt

Total borrowings (R vt 169,000 273,000
Less: Cash and cash Tk B R e SEEY) (280,125) (185,380)

equivalents

Net (cash)/debt (B4) MEIA TR AE (111,125) 87,620

Total equity i 2o A 1,273,227 1,098,365

Total capital B LA 1,162,102 1,185,985

Gearing ratio B E R 0% 7%

The Group’s strategy is to maintain a solid capital base to
support the operations and development of its business in the
long term.

5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgments used in preparing the financial statements
are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.
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5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Useful lives, residual values and depreciation
charges of property, plant and equipment/useful
lives and amortisation of leasehold land and land
use rights

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives, residual values and related depreciation/amortisation
charges for the Group’s property, plant and equipment and
leasehold land and land use rights with reference to the
estimated periods that the Group intends to derive future
economic benefits from the use of these assets. Management
will revise the depreciation and amortisation charges where
useful lives are different to previously estimated, or it will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic
lives may differ from estimated useful lives and actual
residual values may differ from estimated residual values.
Periodic review could result in a change in depreciable lives
and residual values and therefore depreciation/amortisation
expense in future periods.

Inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and selling expenses. These estimates are based
on the current market condition and the historical experience
of manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. It
could change significantly as a result of changes in customer
taste and competitor actions in response to severe industry
cycle. Management reassesses these estimates at each balance
sheet date.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets including property, plant and equipment,
leasehold land and land use rights, investments in subsidiaries
and investment in an associate are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. The recoverable
amounts have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations or fair value less costs to sell. These calculations
require the use of judgments and estimates.
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5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(o)

(d)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)
Management judgment is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has
occurred that may indicate that the related asset values may
not be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying value of asset
can be supported by the recoverable amount, being the higher
of fair value less costs to sell and net present value of future
cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued
use of the asset in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow projections
including whether these cash flow projections are discounted
using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management in assessing impairment, including the
discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash
flow projections, could materially affect the net present value
used in the impairment test and as a result affect the Group’s
financial condition and results of operations. If there is a
significant adverse change in the projected performance and
resulting future cash flow projections, it may be necessary to
take an impairment charge to the income statement.

Current and deferred income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC and other
jurisdictions. Judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes in each of these jurisdictions.
There are transactions and calculations during the ordinary
course of business for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such as
differences will impact the income tax and deferred income
tax provisions in the period in which such determination in
made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when management
considers it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. When the expectation is different

from the original estimate, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred income tax assets and taxation charges
in the period in which such estimate is changed.
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5

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(e)  Provision for long service payment
The Group’s provision for long service payment is determined
with reference to statutory requirements, the employees’
remuneration, their year of services and age profile, and
demographic assumptions including, pre-retirement
termination, involuntary termination, early retirement, normal
retirement, death and disability. The basis of estimation is
reviewed on an on-going basis and revised where appropriate.
Any changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying
amount of provision for long service payments and as a result
affect the results and financial position of the Group.

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the retailing and wholesaling of
gold jewellery and gold ornaments, gem-set jewellery and gemstones,
and other accessory items.

Turnover represents invoiced sales of goods and includes an amount
of HK$480,158,000 (2008: HK$625,268,000) which was settled by
gold bullion and the gold bullion was in turn used for settlement of
trade payables.

Primary reporting format — business segments
The Group is organised mainly in Hong Kong and the PRC into two
major business segments:

. Retailing of jewellery

. Manufacturing and wholesaling of jewellery, including the
provision of technical support and consultancy services, and
quality control of jewellery products to certain licensees

Other operations of the Group mainly represent investments and
services relating to internet and software development.

Operating expenses of a functional unit are allocated to the relevant
segment which is the predominant user of the services provided by
the unit. Operating expenses of other shared services which cannot be
allocated to a specific segment and corporate expenses are included as
unallocated expenses.

Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and equipment,
leasehold land and land use rights, inventories, trade receivables,
deposits, prepayments and other receivables, and operating cash.
They exclude deferred tax assets and corporate assets.
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6  TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 6  BEBEWEF @
INFORMATION (Continued)
Primary reporting format — business segments FE BT — B )
(Continued)
Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities. They exclude items SRR AE A o (AL
such as taxation payable, deferred tax liabilities, short-term bank BLIE ~ IRICBIIE A - B ERAT R K
loans and other corporate liabilities. HAth A HEEE -
Capital expenditure comprises mainly additions to property, plant and AP S AR - R Kk
equipment and leasehold land and land use rights. W~ FEE ot K - b fe FAE o
Manufacturing and
Retailing wholesaling Other operations Eliminations Group
3 Li Tt Jet i A%H

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$'000 | HKS'000 | HK$000 | HK$'000 | HKS$'000 | HK$'000 | HK$000 | HKS'000 | HK$000 | HKS'000

T | T | | T | T | T | Tk | T | TEx| Tk

Turnover from external customers  #/ME P &£

~ Sales of merchandises —HEER 3075565 | 250132 | 291227 | 23209 - - - — | 3366792 | 2733412
— Sales of scrap gold and ~HERER
platinum and gold bullion SRR
el ) ~ | 486643 | 629509 - = - — | 486643 | 629509
~Others —Hf - = - = 3,549 4261 - = 3,549 4261
Inter-segment sales it 18275 | 94284 | 921,700 | 869910 - - [ (1039973)]  (964,194) - -
3193840 | 2595606 | L699ST0 | LTBLS09 | 3549 | 4261 | (1039975) (964,194)| 3856,984 | 336718
Other income HfieA 1411 408 | 13984 | 89015 484 3,826 - - 130209 | 93339
Inter-segment other income AhbiEL 2 A - - - - 813 611 813) (611) - =
Total b 3195251 | 2,596,104 | 18233554 | 1820524 9,186 8,698 | (1040,788)| (964,805)| 3987203 | 3460521
Segment results Ihibs 00474 | 270893 | 165961 | 191667 | 2204 2380 | 4483 | (30432)| 3m92 | 425508
Gain on deemed disposal of e E—ZME
a subsidiary NGV € - - - 2% - - - - - 2%
Interest income FBMA 495 1,882
Unallocated costs ROERA (50494)[  (50.944)
3309 | 376472
Finance costs Jigsdi 8302)]  (3429)
Share of results of an associate Tl —F s A
5 1230 (856)
Profit before taxation Bt Al 36021 | 37,187
Taxation fi 31781)]  (54235)

Profit for the year il 840 | 31795




Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7442 3] ([ %) 45 BR8]

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S5 i o Wik

6 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 6 BEHEENBER @)
INFORMATION (Continued)
Primary reporting format — business segments FEEHIT R — B )
(Continued)
Manufacturing and
Retailing wholesaling Other operations Eliminations Group
Ei S s JuEH K AEH
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$'000 | HKS000 | HK$'000 | HKS000 | HKS$'000 | HK$'000 | HKS$'000 | HKS000 | HK$'000 | HKS000
T | Tbc | T | T | TR | T | k| T | THE| TR
Segment assels GE 1028554 | 1053815 | 1062319 | L0101 | 978 | 11678 | (489700) (478324)| 1,610,943 | 1598,187
Unallocated assets REE 143502 | 107817
Total assets hgE 1,754,445 | 1,706,004
Segment labilites P (539277) (610027) (142250) (I7732)] (LD ()| 48071l | 478324 | QI3ST)| (290309)
Short-term bank loans R TER (169,000)  (273.000)
Unallocated liabilites FAfE (98961)|  (44330)
Total liabilities BafE (481.218)]  (607.639)
Depreciation &
~alocated ~EAE By | 18193 9,498 9373 I 14 - S| oBas| %0
~ unallocated kOl 2,640 440
36055 | 3198
Amortisation i
~allocated ~EAE 16 16 3 305 7 7 - - 33 38
~ unallocated — K0l 3 13
366 341
Capital expenditure BARY
~alocated ~E4E 20| 31795 6449 | 1700 i - - | merr| 48995
~ unallocated k0 1,085 2711
9700 | 51706
Impairment of leasehold il vz
improvements - allocated WE-EAE 2315 = - = - = - - 23 =
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 6  BEBRSBER @
INFORMATION (Continued)
Secondary reporting format — geographical segments P8 Ry R — Sy B
The geographical analysis is divided into three regions: bl 43T 8 43 2 = AR b
. Hong Kong . s
. PRC = e
. Others (Macau, the United States and Canada) . Hofth (Y ~ 2B R NEK)
An analysis of the Group’s turnover by location of customers and an P25 5 LB AT A S ) 2 R R
analysis of the Group’s assets and capital expenditure by location of JE L 43 T AR AR B 2 B A B S
assets are as follows: AR
Turnover Total assets Capital expenditure
eS| B AP
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$°000 | HK$°000 HK$'000 | HK$°000 | HKS$'000
T T T T T T THTT
Hong Kong s 3,113,074 | 2935495 | 1,006,426 | 1,057,684 12,090 23,161
PRC il 449,472 263,064 611,261 529,450 12,458 21,004
Others HoAl 294,438 168,623 136,758 118,870 5,154 7,541
3,856,984 | 3,367,182 | 1,754,445 | 1,706,004 29,702 51,706
OTHER INCOME 7 BB
2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#xT THIT
Royalty income BAHEBA 90,892 57,882
Consultancy fee income [ HE- TN 9,880 10,051
Rebate from import agents N EL e HTE 9,575 17,129
Value-added tax refund HEEBUR K 11,337 -
Others oAt 8,535 8,277
130,219 93,339
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8  OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), NET 8 bl (i) -
2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#x T
Gain/(loss) on derivative financial WEL G AEEmMTH
instruments-trading of gold s, () 2,709 (31,815)
Write back of provision for el 450 A7 TR
slow-moving inventories 735
Gain on deemed disposal of AR — KM A F
a subsidiary (Note 32(b)) Z s (BEEE32(b)) -
3,444 (30,537)
9  EXPENSES BY NATURE 9 MR ABMZMSL
2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#x T#IT
Cost of inventories sold O B A 3,038,697 2,529,490
Staff costs (including directors’ Wi B A (B0 46 3 )
emoluments) 269,097 227,466
Operating lease rentals in respect of ~ THL R BEFRETHE 2 4
land and buildings 164,961 126,685
Advertising and promotion expenses  J& 15 & B {# 5 £ 38,317 35,671
Commission expenses to credit SAME AR AR Z RER L
card companies 31,617 25,194
Depreciation of property, W2 - R B ey
plant and equipment 36,055 31,982
Provision for impairment of TH B W A W B
leasehold improvements 2,315 -
Loss on disposal of property, WEWE - W Bk
plant and equipment P it 351 1,027
Amortisation of leasehold land FHE b B - b R A
and land use rights 366 341
Deficit on revaluation of properties 3.2 H it 4l 6 46
Auditor’s remuneration o B R 4 3,096 3,164
Others oAt 87,378 76,559
Total A 3,672,256 3,057,625
Representing: 1 -
Cost of sales S AR 3,038,697 2,529,490
Selling and distribution costs $8 T s 565,564 466,017
Administrative expenses T 67,995 62,118
3,672,256 3,057,625
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FINANCE (COSTS)/INCOME, NET 10 B R, > T8
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000
T THIT
Interest income FLE A 495 1,882
Net exchange gain HPRES A 54 4,207 2,231
4,702 4113
Interest on short-term bank loans S HERAT B LS, (8,302) (3,429)
(3,600) 684
TAXATION 11 BiE
2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$°000
T THIT
Hong Kong profits tax B
— current — B 26,553 59,120
— over-provision in prior years — TR AR (3,283) (108)
Overseas taxation T AIMBTE 10,930 2,725
Deferred taxation (Note 29) PEAERLIH (P 5E29) 3,581 (7,502)
37,781 54,235

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5%
(2008: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.
Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC corporate income tax rules and
regulations, certain subsidiaries of the Group are qualified as foreign
investment production enterprise and have been entitled to a two-year
exemption from income taxes followed by a 50% reduction in income
taxes for the ensuing three years from its first profit-making year.
Pursuant to the new PRC corporate income tax rules promulgated in
2007, these subsidiaries are subjected to tax rate gradually increased
to 25% towards year 2012.

T vt RSB )5 50 A 4 Ay 5 B o ¥ )
F2 B K 16.5% (2008 4 : 17.5% ) 2 5 HE
5 o AN R 2 B A TS SEAR A BEAG T HE
A T ) A 4 [ SE TS P A 1B R e
REHE -

AR 415 FH 0 v ] A 2 T 45 B AG 191 S 5451
A A [ T L S R4 A AN B A
T2 B > FERR BN BT 15 B AR
RHAZ =R EE - EE g HY
A A8 R 4 P RE A K o AR A 2007 4 4H A
28 B A FE TS BB > R AR A
H) ) T 15 BB 2R 8 AR IR B % 2012 4F 1
25% °
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11 TAXATION (Continued) 11 B @)
The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the 7% £ [ 3 ol T Y ) 2 0 T BEL 6 ) A v B
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate in Hong Rl H 2 MBI R
Kong as follows:
2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#xT THIT
Profit before taxation 45 RiT S A1l 316,021 372,187
Less: Share of results of an associate A (e & - /NEIE (1,230) 856
314,791 373,043
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% FEA%16.5% (20084F © 17.5%)
(2008: 17.5%) AR ZBA 51,941 65,283
Effect of different taxation rates in oA R 2 [ B R[] 2 R 2
other jurisdictions (1,039) (1,244)
Effect of tax holidays of the F I BB A W) e B 2 R
PRC subsidiaries (19,588) (13,932)
Effect of change in tax rate TR H) 2 5 848 -
Income not subject to taxation BEZHRRBLZ A (649) (394)
Expenses not deductible for ANal4nEiz 32
taxation purposes 5,884 3,034
Over-provision in prior years PEAF BE R AR (3,283) (108)
Unrecognised tax losses R R TE s 18 878 1,621
Utilisation of previously B AR R W RR AL IE e 18
unrecognised tax losses (69) 25)
Withholding tax on PRC subsidiaries w2 B A W) 2 R AR 2,858 -
37,781 54,235
12 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 12 A vl HE R A MEAN R

HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of
HK$109,893,000 (2008: HK$149,480,000).

AR ) FA S R 35 A R B 2 AN R A 2R
Frl NEAG % F) 55109,893,000%45 7T (2008

4E 149,480,000 7T) ©



EARNINGS PER SHARE 13

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the

Group’s profit attributable to equity holders of the Company of
HK$275,160,000 (2008: HK$313,989,000) and the weighted average
number of 492,507,850 (2008: 492,507,850) ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is the same as there were no potential
dilutive ordinary shares outstanding during the years.
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g R B A 8 R T AR AR 2 IR £ R A
JRE Ak 4= 4= | 3z A1 275,160,000 # T (2008
4F 1 313,989,000 70) M AF A 25 T 48
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DIVIDENDS 14  JBE
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#IL AR
2008/09 interim, paid, of HK$0.05 £ UK2008/094F J Hr 1A it 5.
(2007/08 interim: HK$0.10) per A 54 0. 05 U5 I
ordinary share (2007/084F B H A B, -
0.1047T) 24,625 49,251
2008/09 final, proposed, of HK$0.12  #£JR2008/094F & A A% 5.
(2007/08 final: HK$0.155) g IR 0. 125 7T
per ordinary share (note) (2007/08F FEAR S,
0.155%7T) (Ff5E) 59,101 76,339
Note: fiksE

At a meeting held on 22nd July 2009, the directors recommended the payment
of a final dividend of HK$0.12 per ordinary share, totalling HK$59,101,000.
Such dividend is to be approved by the shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting on 31st August 2009. This proposed dividend is not reflected as
dividends payable in these financial statements, but will be reflected as an
appropriation of retained earnings for the year ending 31st March 2010.

R20094E7 H22 H 84T 2 ik b > HEH K
IR AH 2K 1A B B A A S A 0. 129 T A
59,101,000%57G © 47 BB EJE 7R H R 2009478
H31H 247 2 BB R & b HEUE o SRR A
TG e I S B R r S B A R T IS, 5 e
W A 201043 H31 H IEFBE 2 RE &
FGIR -
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS 15 BRIRREADEA
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFsL TG
Net contributions to pension plans i b L & - P
charged to the income statement RAREFT A 9,866 7,546
The expense is recognised in the ARSI R R 2
following line items in the DI IE E R
income statement:
Selling and distribution costs SHE Ko e 8,789 6,913
Administrative expenses 1T 1,077 633
9,866 7,546
At 31st March 2009, there were no unutilised forfeited contributions FA20094E3 A31H » Wl 48 B F 2 R i fit
(2008: Nil). K (20084F : 4) o
DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 16 HHEEEHSPA B4
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS :
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) ML

The aggregate amounts of emoluments payable to the
directors of the Company during the year were as follows:

AN E AT AR 2 R 3 2 2 T < A

mF

2009 2008

HK$’000 HK$’000

Tt THIT

Fees 4 1,024 960
Salaries, allowances and e AR EY A

benefits-in-kind 31,297 21,832
Performance and discretionary %351 1% 45 i 2 € 4L

bonuses 6,697 7,766

Contributions to pension plan B K& 51 H{EKk 292 254

Total payable and expensed A5 ARIE K2 £ i BA TS HR 3%
in the financial statements ST 2 AR 39,310 30,812
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16 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 16 PR EHATAARME @)
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) P E &)
The remuneration of each director is set out below: FERZMEMT
For the year ended 31st March 2009
HRF 200943 1 31 H AR )%
Performance Employer’s
and contribution
discretionary to pension
bonuses plan
ikl TR Total
Fees Salaries BB Wik Sut emoluments
Name of Director A W b A4 2% T 2 A 7
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T T T T#L T#L
WONG Wai Sheung HAER 55 27,422 3271 136 30,884
TSE Moon Chuen HH 2 55 981 877 46 1,959
LAW Tim Fuk, Paul BRAR 55 1,182 1,636 54 2,927
LAU Kwok Sum [T 55 854 409 40 1,358
WONG Ho Lung, Danny & HE
(appointed on (220084
Ist September 2008) 9H1H
BZAT) k) 233 252 7 524
WONG Lan Sze, Nancy & [iif
(appointed on (1220084
1st September 2008) 9A1H
BZIT) k) 280 252 9 573
WONG Koon Cheung B 55 115 - - 170
CHAN Wai PR 55 115 - - 170
LEE Shu Kuan Z 55 115 - - 170
YEUNG Po Ling, WER
Pauline (note) (FfsE) 55 - - - 55
HUI King Wai Gin1 110 - - - 110
CHIU Wai Mo HER
(resigned on (1220084
24th July 2008)* TH24H
RHE)# 40 - - - 40
HUI Chiu Chung* GG 130 - - - 130
LO Mun Lam, R
Raymond* 150 - - - 150
TAI Kwok Leung, W R
Alexander (appointedon  (JA2008%4F
24th July 2008)* TH24H
B&IT)+ 90 - - - 90
1,024 31,297 6,697 292 39,310
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(a)

16 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 16 AR E A BN B4 (0
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) HEIEWEED
For the year ended 31st March 2008
BE20084F3 31 H ILEE
Performance Employer’s
and contribution
discretionary to pension
bonuses plan
kB {33 Total
Fees Salaries J 5 35Tk BRG] emoluments
Name of Director EHEA Hig: ¥ Z AL 2K T4 4
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
e e i i it
WONG Wai Sheung Py 55 18,540 4,043 121 22,759
TSE Moon Chuen EINES 55 948 1,125 43 2,171
LAW Tim Fuk, Paul BV 55 1,167 2,021 52 3,295
LAU Kwok Sum BB 55 832 577 38 1,502
WONG Koon Cheung W 55 115 = = 170
CHAN Wai BRfE 55 115 - - 170
LEE Shu Kuan B gt 55 115 - - 170
YEUNG Po Ling, WEE
Pauline (note) (BfFsE) 55 = = - 55
HUI King Wai a5 110 - - - 110
CHIU Wai Mo AR
(resigned on (JiA20084
24th July 2008)* TH24H
BHAL) ¢ 130 - - - 130
HUI Chiu Chung ATHE e 130 - - - 130
LO Mun Lam, Raymond* Gie 150 = = = 150
960 21,832 7,766 254 30,812
#: Independent non-executive directors. # WAL IFEATES
Note: FfaE

Miss YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline has entered into a service contract
with a subsidiary of the Company for her exclusive services for the
promotion of the products and services of the Group (see also Note

34(b)).

No directors waived their emoluments in respect of the years
ended 31st March 2008 and 20009.

MBS /IMH Bl B A8 A IRHs T A4
F > DA JoE A 4 Y E o B RS
BRAR A\ A — K BB A R T SL AR G 4
(3 R EE34(b)) ©

2 20084 200943 A31 H Ik
AERE 5 N A ORI 4 -



16 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 16
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals

Among the five highest paid individuals, four (2008: four)

of them are directors of the Company and the details of their
remuneration have been disclosed in the preceding paragraph.
The emoluments of the remaining highest paid individual are

Annual Report 2009 4E#; 102-103

WA B A B B4 (s

(b)

T J5c v B L

SR a=TE ) DN L 1 4
(20084F : MU4%) Fy AN m) >
EFd ATy N =S
ok o N 2 4 5

as follows: L

2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#xT THIT

Salaries, allowances and B B REYA
benefits-in-kind 1,761 1,425

Performance and discretionary $% 3¢ i B 1 25 il 2 fE 4L
bonuses 1,659 1,895
Contributions to pension plan K4 513 {2 72 54
3,492 3,374
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17 W%~ B &t
L]

Group
Furniture and
Leasehold fixtures and
improve- computer Plant and
ments  equipment  machinery Motor
Properties ~ MIEEHIE A - KE Wi vehicles Total
IES B REMSH BBk o L Hm
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TH#L T T T T T
Cost or valuation e B )
At Ist April 2008 12008541 1H 68,039 86,141 45,129 20,971 6,537 226,817
Exchange adjustment [ 2 970 (216) 75 256 66 1,151
Additions, at cost RE > A 463 20,388 5,783 1,966 671 29271
Revaluation adjustment E TS (103) - - - - (103)
Transfer between categories IR - (14) 39 (25) - -
Impairment B - 4231) - - - 4231)
Disposals e - (2,716) (2,283) (142) - (5,141)
At 31st March 2009 200943131 H 69,369 99,352 48,743 23,026 7274 247,764
Accumulated depreciation AR
and impairment charges TR E
At st April 2008 200854 71 H 2,840 55311 32,599 14,265 4,339 109,354
Exchange adjustment e 5 36 (256) 1 161 39 (19)
Charge for the year A, 1,504 23,721 5,946 3,731 1,153 36,055
Transfer between categories il - (€) 7 ) - -
Impairment W - (1916) - - - (1,916)
Disposals e - (1,547) (1,670) (114) - (3,331)
At 31st March 2009 J#200943A31H 4,380 75,310 36,883 18,039 5,531 140,143
Net book value HRIE R
At 31st March 2009 #200943A31H 64,989 24,042 11,860 4,987 1,743 107,621
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17 ¥ -~ B Bl (s

(Continued)
Group (Continued) A1 ()
Furniture and
Leasehold  fixtures and
improve- computer Plant and
ments  equipment  machinery Motor
Properties ~ MEMHE G KE W vehicles Total
L/ES % RENE Fetkds TR Bt
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS$000
T THT T T T T
Cost or valuation RASE A (E
At Ist April 2007 J#20074F4H 1 H 60,596 68,867 38,961 19,641 4,958 193,023
Exchange adjustment [ 3t 4 5% 5,539 935 756 1,522 303 9,055
Additions, at cost WNE  EHAME 2,102 29,652 7495 1915 1,904 43,068
Revaluation adjustment B 381 = = = = 381
Deemed disposal of Bl &

a subsidiary — KM A - (2,274) (455) (2,051) (281) (5,061)
Disposals e (579) (11,039) (1,628) (56) (347) (13,649)
At 31st March 2008 J#20084E3H31H 68,039 86,141 45,129 20,971 6,537 226,817

Accumulated depreciation EfTE
At Ist April 2007 #20074E4 H 1 H 1,485 47,067 27,594 10,290 3457 89,893
Exchange adjustment e 5 5 2 567 520 956 25 2,270
Charge for the year AEETE 1,389 19,778 5,869 3,834 1,112 31,982
Deemed disposal of BIELE

a subsidiary — %M BT = (1,309) (136) (778) (108) (2331)
Disposals HeE (36) (10,792) (1,248) (37) (347) (12,460)
At 31st March 2008 J20084F3H31H 2,840 55311 32,599 14,265 4339 109,354

Net book value HR T V3
At 31st March 2008 J20084£3H31H 65,199 30,830 12,530 6,706 2,198 117,463
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17 W3k ~ B Bt (0
(Continued)
Group (Continued) A1 ()
The analysis of the cost or valuation of the above assets is as follows: bl EE 2 RAMESEE ST T
Furniture and
Leasehold fixtures and
improve- computer Plant and
ments  equipment  machinery Motor
Properties ~ MEWE KA - EE Wi vehicles Total
/B S KE RN V3T Yol A
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
Tk Tk Tk Tk Tk T
At 31st March 2009 JA20094:3)31H
At cost A - 99,352 48,743 23,026 7274 178,395
At professional valuation — 2009 B2t H —20094F 64,989 - - - - 64,989
64,989 99,352 48,743 23,026 7274 243,384
At 31st March 2008 #20084:331H
At cost BAE = 86,141 45,129 20,971 6,537 158,778
At professional valuation — 2008 B2t {H —20084F 65,199 - - - = 65,199
65,199 86,141 45,129 20,971 6,537 223977




PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17
(Continued)

Group (Continued)

Net book value of the properties is analysed as follows:
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Yok ~ W5 BB 0

H M (50
HAb 2 BREFE2 T

Group
3|
2009 2008
HKS$"000 HKS"000
T#xT THTT
In Hong Kong, held on: TER WL N5 A f

— Leases of over 50 years —504E LA EAHAY 324 332
— Leases of between 10 to 50 years — 102 504FFHAY 595 279
919 611

Outside Hong Kong, held on: TR LUSMB R T 577 R
— Leases of over 50 years —S04ELA_EAHAY 527 535
— Leases of between 10 to 50 years — 102504 FHAY 63,543 64,053
64,070 64,588
64,989 65,199

Properties were revalued on the basis of open market value at 31st
March 2009 by Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent professional
valuer.

The carrying amount of these revalued properties would have been
HK$66,166,000 (2008: HK$66,287,000) had they been stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Py 2E 2 i M8 S B E A (LR Asset Appraisal
Limited$% i~ 200943 H 31 H 2 /A BH 7 (B 5
HEFRfY o

B i ) 3% DA LA (8 22 AT 8 K R
A R 51 R B E U T (A
66,166,000 # 7T (2008 4 : 66,287,000 #

JG) °



Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7442 3] ([ 5% 4 BR 28 7]

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SV 5 o ik

18

LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE AL 3 B - 3ok YR
RIGHTS
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt THIT
Cost B
At 1st April 4H1H 18,371 9,083
Addition NE 431 8,638
Exchange difference [ifE bo. 25 %0 232 650
At 31st March 3H31H 19,034 18,371
Accumulated amortisation Eie 5
At st April H4H1H 1,336 914
Amortisation for the year GERINE 3] 366 341
Exchange difference T 58, 2% 14 81
At 31st March R3H31H 1,716 1,336
Net book amount R TR (E
At 31st March A3H31H 17,318 17,035
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LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE ALEE A 3t B - H 4 B (0)
RIGHTS (Continued)
The net book amount of leasehold land and land use rights is analysed L b % - b et PR RE 2 B T VR L 4 A
as follows: e
2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#xT T
In Hong Kong, held on: TER AL N3 A f
— Leases of over 50 years —504E R0 EFHAY 946 962
— Leases of between 10 to 50 years — 102504 FFHEY 718 298
1,664 1,260
Outside Hong Kong, held on: GEEELSMEE T A | |
— Leases of over 50 years —504 L0 EFHA) 765 778
— Leases of between 10 to 50 years — 10504 #) 14,889 14,997
15,654 15,775
17,318 17,035
INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES B A b #t %
Company
A
2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#xT THTT
Unlisted investments, at cost FEWEE > HlAE 298,887 298,887

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 36 to the

financial statements.

R T 2 T R OV S R M
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INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE 20 JA—FKBEAE Z
Group
p|
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000
TH#L R REPTH
Share of net assets, as at 1st April JEAL & E > R4 A 1H 874 =
Share of results of an associate JE A — SR ) 2E 4
— Profit/(loss) before taxation — BRI A Ol 1R) 1,230 (856)
— Taxation —HiJH - -
1,230 (856)
Exchange difference T 53 2= %0 (149) =
Amount retained as investment in W —FHhE A&
an associate (Note 32(b)) HRIE (B 5E32(b)) - 1,730
Share of net assets, as at 31st March JEAL & FE > A3 H31H 1,955 874
Amount due from an associate JRE U — B I R TE 6,491 19,888

Amount due from an associate is denominated in HK$ and is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The associate did
not have defaults in the past. During the year ended 31st March 2009,
no amount due from the associate was impaired (2008: Nil).

Particulars of the associate of the Group as at 31st March 2009 are as

JRE i — R B % N ) 2 MR TE S L s e R
B> Sl 2 AR - A B S 28 I B OR Y
o LI N ER R I R T B o
2009463 431 H ILERER > MENCZ IS
N 2 BRTE NG SR (20084F © 4) o

o

A [ 44N B A 200943 A 31 H 2 5F 1%

follows: W -
Place of Particulars of % of attributable
Name incorporation issued share capital interest held indirectly Principal activities
E1 iR WAL CEAT IR AN CERERE) 0T S X AR 3
2009 2008

Luk Fook Diamond Hong Kong HKS$ 6,120,000 50% 50% Manufacturing and wholesale of

Company Limited diamond products
ANEEAARAT B 6,120,000 7T R R B




21

22

Annual Report 2009 43¢ 110-111

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 21 ¥4~ T MR B b B
RECEIVABLES b

Group Company
0| A
2009 2008 2009 2008

HK$°000 | HK$000 | HK$000 | HKS$'000
T TEIT T#x TETT

Deposits ¥4 4 41,153 40,197 - =

Prepayments TEATHRIA 6,842 11,167 - 31

Other receivables Hofth RS HRTE 21,659 18,972 - -

69,654 70,336 - 31

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s deposits, A 45 [ B AR ) 2 i 4 T A B i R IR

and other receivables are approximate to their fair value and are Z MR B 55 2 B AR » S RA T
denominated in the following currencies: G BTy B

Group Company
ESL ] A
2009 2008 2009 2008

HK$’000 | HK$'000 | HK$000 | HKS$°000
T Tt T#x TETT

HK$ S 48,213 43,706 - -
RMB N 13,662 13,840 - -
US$ S 431 454 - -
Other currencies HoAth £ 506 1,169

62,812 59,169 - -
The credit quality of deposits and other receivables has been assessed 2 4 I Ho A RE W R TH 2 {5 B8 & 595 i
by reference to historical information about the counterparty default S22 B T O Hi R LR 2 A R
rates. The existing counterparties do not have defaults in the past. TTEAG o B B 5 8 A I 4 KR
During the year ended 31st March 2009, no deposits and other $k o BZE20094F3 H31 H IEFEEA - Slf7 1
receivables were impaired (2008: Nil). 2 4 K HC A 1 SR T 2 38 (L (2008 4F

) o

INVENTORIES - GROUP 22 fFR-4%M
At 31st March 2009, inventories carried at net realisable value A20094F3 H31H » %Al E B ES iR 2
amounted to HK$884,000 (2008: HK$916,000). 17 £ 884,000 JC (2008 4F © 916,000 75

JT) °
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AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES -
COMPANY

The balances are denominated in HK$ and are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group’s sales are mainly on cash basis. Credit sales are mainly

for the Group’s wholesale customers with credit terms of 0 to 90 days.

23

24

M M 2 0 5 —
A

2% ERE T DAY SO RHE o 3 A SR -
G S BB R AER -

B 5 MW

AR R A8 T AE AT o I
Fo B A AAE M 2 AR P M Ek o {5 B
F0%E90H o

The ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows: B 5 REWC AR 2 RRES T 4 T
Group
e

2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#xT T
0—30 days 0-30H 27,274 26,978
31 -60 days 31-60H 7,812 3,874
61 —90 days 61 -90H 946 2,488
91 — 120 days 91-120H 14 -
Over 120 days 120 H 1,035 193
37,081 33,533

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their fair
values.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

oy M Wi e T 2 MR T B % - (B A
2o

AL HE o BICREZ R E N5 &
W B -

Group
M

2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$’000
Tt T T
HK$ 5T 13,685 18,933
RMB N 22,184 13,741
Other currencies HAth & 1,212 859
37,081 33,533
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25

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 24

The credit quality of trade receivables neither past due nor impaired
has been assessed by reference to historical information about the
counterparty default rates. The existing counterparties do not have
defaults in the past.

As at 31st March 2009, trade receivables of HK$741,000 (2008:
HK$83,000) were past due but for which the Group has not provided
for impairment losses. These trade receivables relate to a number

of independent customers for whom there is no recent history of
default. The Group does not hold any collateral as security over these
customers. These trade receivables are aged over 120 days.

During the year ended 31st March 2009, no trade receivables were
impaired (2008: Nil)
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B 5 MBI 35 5

S 403 1 R 2 5 5 B AR IR 5 40
RIBB S A HE TR R
FERORDEEAT ARG o BLAT B 78 £ 0 4
Hi A8

JA200943 H31H - B 5 REILRIE 741,000
WG (20084F : 83,0003 y6) B » e
A A [N A AR LR B R TR e o %
5 BN BRI W I 2 42 400 A I 40 40 /X = 5%
2SI o AN M E SR K P
A AEATHEAT o %55 5 BRI 2 R
B H120H -

AR 2009463 H31 H IR > & 5k
S D 17 43 1 (20084F © 4EE) -

TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES 25  BSMEATIRIE - A REAT R

AND ACCRUALS B itk
Group Company
| A

2009 2008 2009 2008

HK$000 | HK$000 | HK$000 | HKS$ 000

Tt R R(EPTH Tt THIT

Trade payables B 7 REATHRIE 68,780 142,434 - =

Deposits from customers and licensees 7€ [ % )5 F AR 2 51 4 87,241 68,203 - -

Salaries and welfare payables JREA S8 4 B A ) 49,321 32,253 - =

Other payables HoAth RE A RRIE 32,538 29,111 546 853

Accrued expenses ERT# F 20,819 12,743 - -

258,699 284,744 546 853
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TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES 25  BUSMEATMRIE - JAbMEAT RS
AND ACCRUALS (Continued) Be Mtk 9 (s)
The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows: G 5 MEATHRIE 2 BB T I T
Group
3|
2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$’000
TH#xT THTT
0—30 days 0-30H 37,958 91,607
31 -60 days 31-60H 16,676 33,889
61 —90 days 61 -90H 5,761 11,185
91 — 120 days 91-120H 1,405 3,316
Over 120 days 120 H 6,980 2,437
68,780 142,434
The carrying amounts of trade payables, other payables and accruals B 5 MEAT RRIE ~ LAt A IR TH % R 5 5k
approximate their fair values. TH 2 BRTAME B P AR o
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s trade A B B AR T 2 B 5 REAT RRIE ~ HoAth
payables, other payables and accruals are denominated in the JREAS B TE I BTk JH 2 BRTHT(EL LA R 371
following currencies: W LA
Group Company
#M A
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T#x THsTT T#L THTT
HK$ W0 123,191 193,811 546 853
RMB ARH 111,365 60,593 - -
US$ ESH 14,264 26,500 - -
Other currencies Hopth &5 % 9,879 3,840 - -
258,699 284,744 546 853




26 SHORT-TERM BANK LOANS

(a)

(b)

The exposure of the bank loans of the Group and the
Company to interest rate changes and the weighted average
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26 RMISUTEEK
(@) AHEI KA A R AT SR

] 23 58 ) I e % A -3 B R A

effective interest rates are as follows: TR
Group Company
0| A
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
TH#0 THTT TH#0 RR(EPTH
At floating rates i 169,000 273,000 159,000 253,000
Weighted average effective  JIHET-34 B B %
interest rates 1.63% 2.87% 1.61% 2.89%

The carrying amounts of the short-term bank loans are
denominated in HK$ and approximate their fair values.

The Group’s banking facilities, including borrowings, trade
finance and other general banking facilities, were secured as

I ERAT B IR A TC &
{6 > WHHAPEA -

(b)  AEMZMITEE (QEES -
5 5y O R HAt — R SR AT )

follows: JiLARFIIE B EHEA
Group Company

e 0| A
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$°000 | HK$000 | HK$000 | HK$°000
T#L T T T
Guaranteed by the Company  FHAS S Rl {7 42,000 30,000 - =
Guaranteed by a subsidiary ~ FH—ZFfH & > Fl &7 148,000 = 148,000 =
Unsecured SEHCHH 264,329 324,000 264,329 324,000
454,329 354,000 412,329 324,000

Corresponding banking EL 8 F AR R SR A T il

facilities utilised 169,000 273,000 159,000 253,000

At 31st March 2009, the Group and the Company had
undrawn committed borrowing facilities of HK$285,329,000
(2008: HK$81,000,000) and HK$253,329,000 (2008:
HK$71,000,000), respectively, which are expiring within one
year.

200943 A31 H » A4 E KA
NG B RARBLZ B ARG 1 £
Fill & 285,329,000 %5 JG (2008 4F- -
81,000,000% JT) 253,329,000 #
JG (20084 : 71,000,000%57C) > #%
A —AENE -
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27 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM 27 B BBy i A

(a)  Share capital (a) JBAR
Company
A
2009 2008
No. of shares HK$°000 No. of shares HK$°000
JBe A i H T#x et i E T
Authorised: HIE
Ordinary shares of BIRIE{H0.1H T
HK$0.1 each 2k 800,000,000 80,000 800,000,000 80,000

Issued and fully paid: ~ EVEE47 AL
Ordinary shares of R IR (0.1 70

HKS$0.1 each Spilive
At 1st April and R4 1H K
31st March 3H31H 492,507,850 49,250 492,507,850 49,250
(b)  Share premium (b)  BerEes
Company
and
Group
A&
HKS$°000
THTT

At 31st March 2008 and 2009 142008 200943 H 31 H 58,884
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28 faiffh
Group (a) HBH
Capital  Revaluation Exchange Statutory Retained
reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
Wokhf  EAGA  ERGE Rl REEAN ik
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
T T T T T T
(note i) (note ii)
(PHF3) (FzEii)
For the year ended RE20094:3)131H
31st March 2009 AR
At It April 2008 1R20084F4H 1H 135,713 3,030 30,533 5416 799,490 974,182
Profit attributable to equity ~ A/A I HEGFFA A
holders of the Company TEff A - - - - 275,160 275,160
Transfer LS - - - 14,002 (14,002) -
Exchange differences TS 2% - - (845) - - (845)
Deficit on revaluation of W B4
properties - (97) - - - 97)
2007/08 final dividend paid ~~ EFF2007/08F A HIBLEL - - - - (76,339) (76.339)
2008/09 interim dividend paid  EL1F2008/09F FHATBLEL - - - - (24,625) (24,625)
At31st March 2009 R200943H31H 135,713 2933 29,688 19418 959,684 1147436
Representing: &
Reserves fit e 135,713 2933 29,688 19418 900,583 1,088,335
Proposed dividend BEIRIEE - - - - 59,101 59,101
At31st March 2009 1200943 A31H 135,713 2,933 29,688 19418 959,684 1147436
For the year ended HE20084:3)131H
31st March 2008 AR
At lst April 2007 20074745 1H 135,713 2,603 9302 - 594,344 741,962
Profit atributable toequity ~ AATIHEGFFA A
holders of the Company TEff A = = - - 313989 313,989
Transfer L8 = = = 5416 (5416) =
Exchange differences TS A% - = 21,231 - = 21231
Surplus on revaluation of EFaEA T
properties - 427 - - - 427
2006/07 final dividend paid ~ EAF2006/007F RIS, - = = = (54,176) (54,176)
2007/08 interim dividend paid  ELAT2007/08 4 TR EL = = = = (49.251) (4951)
At31st March 2008 200843 H31H 135,713 3,030 30,533 5416 799,490 974,182
Representing: &
Reserves [ 135,713 3,030 30,533 5416 723,151 897,843
Proposed dividend BRI - - - - 76,339 76,339
At31st March 2008 200843 H31H 135,713 3,030 30,533 5416 799,490 974,182
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28 RESERVES (Continued)
(a)

(b)

28 filli a0
Group (Continued) (a EEE)
Note: i
() The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference (@) AL EARHHE AL
between the nominal value of the shares of the acquired A 1997 4 i 4H IRF A Wi B 55 1 7
subsidiaries, and the nominal value of the Company’s AR R A7 22 T (L B 5 i R
shares issued for the acquisition at the time of the Group’s JB A R 22 I3 T L [ 2
reorganisation in 1997. FEHH o
(ii) Statutory reserves are non-distributable and the transfers of (ii) B A T R A T LAAHKR
these funds are determined by the Board of Directors of the JICAEE S A T P A R v 122 R
relevant PRC subsidiaries in accordance with the relevant JB > ) S R AR % B A B
laws and regulations in the PRC. B HIIE
Company
Contributed Retained
surplus earnings Total
BB PREd A Ham
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THTT T THTT
For the year ended 2200943 H31H
31st March 2009 ALAEBE
At 1st April 2008 JA20084F4 H 1 H 298,687 104,941 403,628
Profit for the year A R A = 109,893 109,893
2007/08 final dividend paid EAF2007/084F B A WIS, = (76,339) (76,339)
2008/09 interim dividend paid ELA2008/094F JE H 11 5. = (24,625) (24,625)
At 31st March 2009 #£20094F3H31H 298,687 113,870 412,557
Representing: Rk
Reserves fitifhi 298,687 54,769 353,456
Proposed dividend FEUR IS - 59,101 59,101
At 31st March 2009 TA20094E3 H31 H 298,687 113,870 412,557
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RESERVES (Continued) 28 fui i (a0
(b) Company (Continued) (b) A &)
Contributed Retained
surplus earnings Total
TR PREE @A Ham
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
AR Tt Tt
For the year ended B2 20084E3H31H
31st March 2008 IEAE
At 1st April 2007 200744 H 1H 298,687 58,888 357,575
Profit for the year A B i A = 149,480 149,480
2006/07 final dividend paid EAF2006/074F B A WIS, = (54,176) (54,176)
2007/08 interim dividend paid ELAF2007/08 47 A 1S, = (49,251) (49,251)
At 31st March 2008 JA20084F3 431 H 298,687 104,941 403,628
Representing: 3k -
Reserves Tttt 298,687 28,602 327,289
Proposed dividend PR B B = 76,339 76,339
At 31st March 2008 A20084-3 H31 H 298,687 104,941 403,628

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the nominal value of the shares issued by
the Company in exchange for all the issued ordinary shares
of Luk Fook Investment (B.V.1.) Limited and the value of net
assets of the underlying subsidiaries acquired by the Company
in 1997. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus is distributable to the
shareholders, provided that the Company would, after the
payment of dividends out of the contributed surplus, be able
to pay its liabilities as they become due; or the realisable
value of the Company’s assets would thereby not be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities, its issued share capital and its
share premium. At the Group level, the contributed surplus is
reclassified into its component of reserves of the underlying

subsidiaries.

AN T Z BB RGN F A
i Luk Fook Investment (B.V.I.)
Limited 4 ¥ £ #5474 AL 1M 4517
Ry 2 i (E > AR S 7] A 1997 4F
JIT Ve S [ Ao A ) 2 (A
W& 2 25580 - R S 19814
ISR (BAERT) > BB ERTTIR
BTN > MEARA A 3 EAA R
IR B4R > WZEBER A2
IR T B RS SORME B B IRTE > AR
O3] 2 G ] S BLE A gD
HAEH ~ HE BT ReAs K= B
W (E 2 48R - LUAEE B S
WEHAGRSEGT B ASAR
Bt 2 7] 2 At oy o
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29 DEFERRED TAXATION 29 EHEBLHE
Deferred taxation of the Group is provided in respect of: 7 4 (B0 4 B E TG 8 N 51 4% JE AR
i -
Tax depreciation Unrealised profiton ~ Undistributed profit
allowances closing inventories of PRC subsidiaries Total
WRARZ RO E
_ BessvidmE  RESIRN  WEAWEA 0 AW
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$°000 | HK$'000 | HK$°000 | HK$000 | HK$’000 | HK$000 | HK$000 | HK$°000
TL | T | T | TG | TG | TE | TR | T
At 1st April W4H1H 2,870 2,268 11,971 5,071 - - 14,841 7339
Credited/(charged) to the 5/ (411FR)
income statement AR
(Note 11) (Bf5ELD) 695 602 (1,418) 6,900 (2,858) - (3,581) 7,502
At 31st March W3H31H 3,565 2,870 10,553 11,971 (2,858) - 11,260 14,841
Representing: R
2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#xT THIT
Deferred tax assets RIERLIH & 14,240 14915
Deferred tax liabilities RSERLIE A (2,980) (74)
11,260 14,841

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit
through the future taxable profit is probable. As at 31 March 2009,
the Group had potential unrecognised deferred tax assets amounting
to HK$7,276,000 (31 March 2008: HK$6,467,000) in respect of tax
losses to be carried forward against future taxable income. These tax

losses have no expiry date.

At 1% 0 T e 1 T A R IR AL T AT B
FE > MEZEA AT BEE AR H 1% BT B i A
RO BB IR 52 - R20094E3 H31H >
7 45 B ) R WERR T A% T A5 4N B H A&
JRE SRR WS A B o s 5 2 7,276,000 95 T
(200843 31 H : 6,467,00047C) - 4 H
Tt B s 12117 Y82 A (I DIBR
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS - 30
LONG SERVICE PAYMENT

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is obligated
to make lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances to certain employees who have completed at least five
years of service with the Group. The amount payable is dependent

on the employees’ final salary and years of service, and is reduced

by entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement plan that are
attributable to contributions made by the Group. The Group does

not set aside any assets to fund any remaining obligations. The long
service payments are paid out from the Group’s cash in hand when
such payments are required.

The latest actuarial valuation as at 31st March 2009 specifically
designated for the Group’s employees was completed by a qualified
actuary, Mercer (Hong Kong) Limited, using projected unit credit
method.
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D B RS — RIBIRHS 4

R A 0 e 1) AR B A AR R A
TRUWT - R C MR AL H D L 4F
A7 TR B A 1k A I 1) SO R K
A o MEAT IR T A B R B 2 AR
o B 5 A B AE o S 36l AR 4R AR A
FEEIET - BASEE 2 e 2 R
MESE o A% 42 H 0 438 U A ) 2 AR A AT
IR T BAEZ EE o RT B SATHA B
IR - EAEE 2 FHEBLES#FC R
JAmeRs 4

& & # ¥ B BT Mercer (Hong Kong)
Limited ATEFTEALE BE T2 M A A 4R
4 B 1 A 4 2 200943 A 31 H S fiks 4
FEAR o

(a) The amount recognised in the balance sheet is as follows: (a) A B B R 2 S EI T
Group
M
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$°000
T THT
Present value of defined benefit BEAEFEAR Z BlE
obligations 22,733 8,710
(b) Movements in the net liability recognised in the balance sheet (b) B E A SRR AR
are as follows: BhunE :
Group
M
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000
T THIT
At beginning of the year 4] 8,710 341
Expenses recognised in A F fR R R 2 B SZ
the income statement 14,023 8,369
At end of the year R 22,733 8,710
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30 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS -

(©

30

D B 6 A 25 AE — b 290 R 5 4

LONG SERVICE PAYMENT (Continued) (%)
Expense recognised in the income statement is as follows: (c) AR A AR 2 B SR
Group
3|
2009 2008
HK$'000 HKS$°000
T#xT THTT
Current service cost RS 2 1,485 37
Interest cost FI S A 235 15
Net actuarial losses recognised EL TR B R 4R 1 A 12,327 8,323
Long service payment benefit TR HA R < A )
made net of MPF benefits (FupsaE AR A 24 6)

14,023 8,369
The expense is recognised in the following line items in the (@  ZERSTYREG R LT E

(@)

income statement:

EY .
o

2009 2008

HK$’000 HK$°000

T#xT THTT

Selling and distribution costs S By 82 7,432 4,436
Administrative expenses 1T H# 6,591 3,933
14,023 8,369
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30 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS - 30 D@ B AT — R8I &
LONG SERVICE PAYMENT (Continued) (#7)
(¢)  The principal actuarial assumptions used as at 31st March (e) JA20094E3 H 31 A i il 2 T 224
2009 (expressed as weighted average) are as follows: SR (LU 27R) 4R -
Group
|
2009 2008
Discount rate Prigs 2% 3%
Future salary increment A a1
Year 2009 20094 0% 4%
Year 2010 20104 0% 4%
Year 2011 20114 1% 4%
Year 2012 20124 2% 4%
Year 2013 and thereafter 20134F K 2 1% 4% 4%
Return of MPF balances Py EE o 2% 3%
31 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 31 BERBEEED
Group Company
g A
2009 2008 2009 2008

HK$°000 | HK$000 | HK$°000 | HK$’000
T THEIT T#x Tiso

Denominated in: FHEEHE -
HK$ WIT 127,463 104,766 584 498
RMB NG 133,591 63,662 - -
Other currencies HAth & 19,071 16,952 624 624
280,125 185,380 1,208 1,122
Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank SRAT AR 3K F A F SR AT 1 Bl 7 3R] 26 BB
deposit rates. The conversion of the RMB denominated balances into FLEL o N RS A ) S0 40 7 S0 32 v
foreign currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign T RS A8 M 22 A0 e A ) A R % T R T A

exchange control promulgated by the PRC government. FR -
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32

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 32
(a)

Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash generated

BABleR R
(a)  FRBLATRA S A ()

from/(used in) operations: Z BlEFEHZ BHRMT ¢
2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$’000
T Tt
Profit before taxation RS il i A1) 316,021 372,187
Amortisation of leasehold land FHE b % 1 b fef PR
and land use rights Py 366 341
Depreciation of property, W3k - W B e
plant and equipment 36,055 31,982
Provision for impairment of TH B W A WA
leasehold improvement 2,315 -
Loss on disposal of property, HEYZE - R K&
plant and equipment A 2 R 351 1,027
Deficit on revaluation of properties LE Ve ] 6 46
Provision for long service payment =R S 1t 14,047 8,375
Interest income FRWA (495) (1,882)
Interest expense FE B2 8,302 3,429
Share of results of an associate AL — F B8 F) 2E 4R (1,230) 856
Gain on deemed disposal of AR — KB A
a subsidiary Z W - (26)
Operating profit before B R SR
working capital changes B8 | 375,738 416,335
Increase in rental deposits TH& a3 (1,283) (2,709)
Decrease/(increase) in TR, ()
inventories 29,165 (496,750)
Increase in trade and other receivables, & 7 & HAthMENIRIE - 24 K
deposits and prepayments TA A MR TR N (3,153) (27,657)
Decrease/(increase) in amount JREM— R A ) A
due from an associate W () 13,397 (15,029)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables, &%) BEATARIE - HoAhfEAS HRIE
other payables and accruals B RERHEIE () /1 (26,045) 67,946
Decrease in employee benefit & B 48 R E AT
obligations (24) (6)
Net cash generated from/ EEEL (TH)Z
(used in) operations B 387,795 (57,870)




(Continued)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 32 #&34&HER®)
Deemed disposal of a subsidiary (b) BEHE KB AY
2009 2008
HK$000 HK$’000
T Tt
Property, plant and equipment W2 ~ W Bk - 2,730
Current assets ) B E - 39,326
Total assets R - 42,056
Total liabilities MR - (38,716)
Minority interests DU A A - (1,636)
Net assets at the date of disposal e H W2 B E TE - 1,704
Less: Amount retained as W R —FKBEARREZ
investment in HRIE (Ff5120)
an associate (Note 20) - (1,730)
Net assets acquired T o i A T - (26)
Proceeds from deemed disposal HAF B e - -
Gain on deemed disposal of HAAE B — B A
a subsidiary (Note 8) Z Wtk (BRFEES) - (26)
Net cash outflow from deemed FANE B — K A
disposal of a subsidiary is Z B AR A
determined as follows: Wy
Proceeds received from deemed EL ISR B — Kt A )
disposal of a subsidiary JEESe - -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents o s R E A R
in a subsidiary disposed B4 T B 5B - (1,517)
Net cash outflow from deemed BERE—RE B AR 2
disposal of a subsidiary B4 U L v A - (1,517)
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COMMITMENTS 33 R
(a)  Capital commitments (a) BEARISE
Group
3|
2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#xT THTT
Contracted but not provided for CRTAHARAE L
property, plant and equipment W - WU Bkt 656 3,964
(b) Commitments under operating leases (b) HERERE
At 31st March 2009, the Group had future aggregate R20094E3 H 31 H » A 4L [k -
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating b BB AR IR AN RIS 2 A AL
leases in respect of land and buildings as follows: BT A ARA AT 2 e ARAL & A3k
BT
Group
e
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#xT T
Not later than one year —4E R 116,139 111,982
Later than one year and not — AR AN AR
later than five years 82,375 120,225
Later than five years T 408 LA 460 1,123
198,974 233,330
The actual payments in respect of certain operating leases i TRUB A B HEAT R 5 £ 3
are calculated at the higher of the minimum commitments JIT e e A 31 BRLAR 425 A1 R 78 i
as noted above and the amounts determined based on a BHRE— T T E SR
percentage of the sales of the related outlets. FERH
(c)  The Company did not have any significant commitment as at (©  AZLFER200943 A 31 H i 4T

31st March 2009 (2008: Nil).

] LAY (20084F ) o
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company is controlled by Luk Fook (Control) Limited (‘“Luk
Fook Control”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,
which directly owns 47.08% of the Company’s shares. The remaining
shares of the Company are widely held. Mr. WONG Wai Sheung and
his family including Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny and Miss WONG
Lan Sze, Nancy are discretionary beneficiaries of the Wong’s Family
Trust (the “Trust”). The Trust is the beneficial owner of the entire
issued share capital of Kwai Kee Cheung Jewellery & Goldsmith
Company Limited which is the beneficial owner of 36.72% of issued
shares of Luk Fook Control. The remaining shares of Luk Fook
Control are widely held.

(a) A subsidiary of the Company entered into a tenancy
agreement with Mr WONG Kwai Sang (deceased), Mr.
WONG Wai Sheung’s father, for the lease of a retail shop of
the Group for a period of 1 year (2008: 1 year), expiring on
31st December 2009. The beneficial interest of the tenancy
agreement was transferred to Mr. WONG Wai Chung in
the capacity as Estate Administrator, after the death of Mr.
WONG Kwai Sang on 23rd April 2008. During the year
ended 31st March 2009, rental paid/payable to in respect of
the tenancy agreement amounted to HK$2,040,000 (2008:
HK$2,040,000).

(b) A subsidiary of the Company entered into a service contract
(“Service Contract”) with Miss YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline
and Topone Investments Limited (“Topone™) for a period of 1
year (2008: 1 year) expiring on 31st March 2009. Pursuant to
the Service Contract, Topone agreed to make available Miss
Yeung’s exclusive services for the promotion of the products
and services of the Group in consideration of an annual fee of
HK$351,750 (2008: HK$335,000). The service contract with
Miss YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline has been extended for 1 year
subsequent to year end.

Both Mr. WONG Wai Sheung and Miss YEUNG Po Ling,
Pauline are directors of the Company and have beneficial
interests in the Company.
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HREAN L2255

AR 2 PR R B R () AT IR
AT AHERERE D) > 0 3l 4 3
BRE ML 2 AT HERA AL R
47.08% B By o A4 B T I 4
A o AR ST R (LT HE R
e R M) BB R AR (1 F5

FE) 2 BHERZ N o % B L AERAEER
HEATA PR R A8 BB AT e A 2 B 4
HEA N > HERCREIRTE S 1T A PR A E £2
HEA S AR E36.72% B B AT A © /S48
PECAR T AR BURRA

(a) AR T — 52 B P 4 ) B AR S
A 2 AUBUEREAE SE A (B Bk 5T
SEFR B R o A SEAR T AR AR
YEZ 8 R & 3 > A3 14 (2008
A 14E) 5 IR 20094F12 H 31 H
JET o R A AR R 2008 4F 4 H
23 H Btk FHE ek B A
Tt PR T A A BN 2 AR
BEA o B A 20093 H31H 1k
R - A ERRE A A
Z F 42 /552,040,000 7T (20084
2,040,000¥57T) °

(b) AR FE—FE S R EAGE /N
AR B —EARAF ([ H—])
SR &4 (TR &4 > B
WI1LAF (20084F : 14F) > iR20094
3H31LH EW - RIFRE &4
25— [l B AR /N (1) 2= 42 [ 5 4L 2
TR > DA R A 4 1] 7 28 s S
MR > AAE & & 351,750 % 7T
(20084F : 335,0004:7C) © HAGE
B /NBFET S 2 s & K BN A
R —A4F o

AR e R R /MY By A
N RIAA N R A T A
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(c)

(@)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 34 A5 B#A L2 %5 #0)
Transactions with the associate (© HBBANZRY
2009 2008
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Rt Tt THIT
Purchase of goods W L @) 174,746 20,989
Rental income B A (ii) 322 270
Management fee income EIEIA (iii) 314 122
Note: Ff &k
(i) Purchases of goods were conducted in the ordinary course of ) A B SEEM R P AR A B
business at prices and terms based on mutual agreements. i e 4 M8 A I Mk R I L R
-8
(ii) Rental income was charged at terms based on relevant lease (ii) MR T 5T 37 2 AR B R & e
agreements. FEAGR AR B U ©
(iii) Management fee income was charged at terms based on (iii) MR PR AE L fh s A M i B
mutual agreement. HEITA -
Key management compensation @  FEEAENE
2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$’000
T THIT
Directors’ fees HHAE 1,024 960
Salaries, allowances and g B EY A
benefits-in-kind 33,058 23,257
Performance and discretionary FRBIIE R Z
bonuses fEAL 8,356 9,661
Contributions to pension plan ARRAG T K 364 308
Total payable and expensed in JEASH RRIE % L s A S 3
the financial statements YA AaEE 42,802 34,186
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36

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

In June 2009, the Group has committed to acquire a commercial
building in Hong Kong at a consideration of HK$254,350,000 from
a third party. The transaction will be completed by 12th August 2009
and will be financed by internal resources and external borrowings.
The Group intends to use approximately 50% floor areas of the
building for operation purposes and the remaining portion for earning
rental income purposes.

35

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES

At 31st March 2009, the Company had the following principal
subsidiaries:

36
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RN R

A 200946 H A 4 [ K ) — 2 5
SH A R ERE B A
254,350,000%5 7G © 7428 5 1% A 2009 4F:8 J
12 HAITSE K - 35 DA A 356 R Je S A Al
AT o AKE B S 5% K T 49 50% 18 T
TR 55 1 7 8 ) 7 > ELB R PR DA B AL 4
WA e

B J 2 il kA

200943 H31 H » AN F] 2 EEMHE A
AR

Percentage of
Place of Particulars of issued attributable
incorporation/ share capital/  interest held by
establishment registered capital the Company
kb, BEATIA S ARATPiFEEEAS  Principal activities
LR L WE A BT A TEEH
2009 2008
Interests held directly:
B
Luk Fook Investment (B.V.I.) BVI HK$2 100 100 Investment holding
Limited T 27T BB
Interests held indirectly:
AT
China Gems Laboratory Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100  Authentication of gemstones
HELR B DA R A A i 2WTT HaEE
Great Cyber Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100  Property holding
HHERE AR A R 100%75 SR EE7ES
Ice Collection (International) Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Retailing of gold and jewellery
Limited it 100¥ 70 products
kit () 1 A K S T BT
Jewellworld.com Limited BVI HK$8,000,000 51 51 Investment holding, and
RE MR (FiE) FRRAF J BT 8,000,000% 7 provision of software
development and services
relating to internet
BB - SRR K
e S L W A AR B R
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36 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 36 HHE A R RER a0
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Percentage of
Place of Particulars of issued attributable
incorporation/ share capital/  interest held by
establishment registered capital the Company
kb, CEARA . ARAWPIFEHEA  Principal activities
B S kR A A HERE AL FEEH
2009 2008
Interests held indirectly: (Continued)
W ER AR ¢ (40
Jewellworld.com Limited Hong Kong HK$100 51 51 Investment holding, and
TRE S () AR i 100775 provision of software
development and services
relating to internet
BOEHEM ~ SR AL B S K
e S T I A AR BRI
Luk Fook Bullions Dealers Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$14,000,000 100 100  Gold bullion trading
ANRE A A ik 14,000,000% 70 HEAM S
Luk Fook Holdings Company Hong Kong HK$2 100 100  Provision of management
Limited ik 270 services to group companies
ANMaEEARAT and wholesale distribution of
gold and jewellery products
A IRE T EE AT R
R 7 1 Pk B
Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Retailing of gold and jewellery
(HK) Company Limited Hik 100575 products
NEHRE ST (F) A RA A TRE B A B
Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith Macau MOP 1,000,000 100 100 Retailing of gold and jewellery
(Macao) Company Limited TR 1,000,000 "¢ products in Macau
ANEERE AT RM) A RA A AR P08 2 e
Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith Canada CAS$ 100 100 100 Retailing of gold and jewellery
(Canada) Limited 19N 10015 K0 products in Canada
ANEHERE AT (NER) HRA A TS RAE IR A E i
TEEY
Max Forum Development Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$100 100 100  Property holding
i B AT PR A 100778 EREE/ES
Maxigood Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 93.3 93.3 Manufacturing and wholesale
S EAERRAT ik 3,000,000 75 distribution of jewellery
products
B B TR E
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36 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

AR )

Percentage of

Place of Particulars of issued attributable

incorporation/ share capital/  interest held by

establishment registered capital the Company

(37 AV TR ARAEPFEMEL  Principal activities

B kA A MRl FEEH

2009 2008
INAEIRE (G A BR A Tl PRC HK$20,000,000 100 100 Manufacturing, wholesale,

Hh 20,000,000% 75 retailing of gold and jewellery
products and provision of
quality examination services
in the PRC

A H B 2R S~ LR K
FEH G PR E MUK
TRALE B 35 2 RS
TN 75 A A R 7 PRC HK$50,000,000 93.3 93.3  Manufacturing, wholesale,

i 50,000,000 7T retailing of gold and jewellery
products and provision of
quality examination services
in the PRC

JA B e R - HEBE
TS MR E R
PRALE i 5 e IR
EFIE (B 1 i R A Al PRC HK$6,000,000 93.3 93.3  Manufacturing of jewellery
Hh 6,000,000% 7G products in the PRC
A e R S B
R 28 e A PR ]+ PRC HK$35,000,000 100 100 Property holding in the PRC
G 35,000,000% 7T S UC EREEEY/ES
+ The subsidiaries are established as wholly foreign-owned enterprises + 25 WA B 2 P R B 2 A E

in the PRC.

Unless otherwise stated, all the above companies operate principally

in Hong Kong.

The above list includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results of the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.
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BUSINESS STRUCTURE
e P

MANUFACTURE & WHOLESALE

Luk Fook Holdings Company Limited

Luk Fook Bullions Dealers Limited

Luk Fook Jewellery Manufacturing (Panyu) Company Limited
Maxigood Enterprises Limited

Luk Fook Corporate Gift (International) Limited

Luk Fook Diamond Company Limited
JEM R4 4 A PR )

PRC BUSINESS
FNAETRE (I A A
JEM 75 A8 AT BR A ]

A (RN 5 i A PR )
R ) 252 AT PR ]

RETAIL

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith (HK) Co., Limited

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith (Canada) Limited

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith (Macao) Limited

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith (USA) Company Limited

FINANCE
Luk Fook Finance Limited

AUTHENTICATION

China Gems Laboratory Limited
China Gems Testing Centre (Macau) Limited

PORTAL BUSINESS

Jewellworld.com Limited

% Ktk 5

AR EA PR T
IR A PR
INAREREL A G ) A PR ]
BRI A S A R A
IR EA (PR A R 7]
IR AT R ]

JE M M AR A o A A R )

GBS
ANHRIREL () IR 7
R 5 B B4
R B & B PR 7
I 0 5 B B 26

M

AR E AT (F) AIRA T
FARRE 4T (g R) A RRA T
ANAREREL AT () A FRA
AAREREL AT (EE) A FRA
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AR A R
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R E I E LA R
TEETRE S E 0 (R AR A

NEELEES
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DISTRIBUTION OF LUK FOOK LICENSEE SHOPS
IN THE PRC
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DISTRIBUTION OF THE GROUP’S RETAIL CHAIN

AR B 2 % 45 8 3 Al

LUK FOOK JEWELLERY %2k 2%
HONG KONG F#its

1 FSRERE e 4795 1 T CHl
Shop C, G/F, 479 Hennessy Rd., Causeway Bay, HK.

2 ARSI JE R 50598 T S T B-Cl
Shops B-C, G/F, Radio City, 505 Hennessy Rd., Causeway Bay,

HK.
3 EHREEETTC RE467-473 A L T R T
A-Biif

Shops A & B, G/F., Kin Tak Fung Commercial Building,
Nos.467-473 Hennessy Rd., Causeway Bay, HK.

4 FUESRES 22 K 3258 SR BRI L T 32A 6
Shop 32A, G/F, JP Plaza, 22 & 32 Paterson Street,
Causeway Bay, HK.

5 A SR8 1 R T 14-17 55
Shop No. 14-17, G/F, 281 King’s Rd., North Point, HK.

6 AL S ELIE400-404 58 G PO
G/F, Ming Yuen Ctr., 400-404 King’s Rd., North Point, HK.

7 AR ERE R REHSS UL
G/F, No.55 Queen’s Road Central, Central, Hong Kong.

8 JURETEANBUEH AT BB S35 T A-CHE
Shops A-C, G/F, 53 Fung Tak Rd., Fung Wong New Village,
Wong Tai Sin, KLN.

9 JURHEE O 22 1 B-ESRE AR M 2R G2
Shop G2, G/F, Hanford House, 221 B-E Nathan Rd., KLN.

10 JUBEFESURPOE3 1555 b
G/F, 315 Nathan Rd, Jordan, KLLN.

11 JUREE SR 77-79 98 T
G/F, 77-79 Mut Wah St., Kwun Tong, KLN.

12 JUREHE A S0E687-689 55 T
G/F, 687-689 Nathan Rd., Mongkok, KLN.

13 JUEERE M 30E603, 603 AT B K B 1L T G1-G2 4
Shops G1-G2, G/F, Sun Hing Bldg., 603, 603A Nathan Rd.,
Mongkok, KLN.

14 JURERE A I80H 650-652% 5 | =K T B
Shop B, G/F, Rex House, 650-652 Nathan Rd., Mongkok, KLN.

15 JUBERE M 0E S80G-KIMZ 04t T~ G1-G2 ) G134
Shops G1-G2 and G13, G/F, Nathan Centre, 580G-K Nathan Rd.,
Mongkok, KLN.

16 JURERE M HB0H 612-6 1 897 AT 22 fA S b T SB S i
Shop 5B, G/F, Good Hope Building, 612-618 Nathan Road,
Mongkok, KLN.

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

JUBERE F IRB0E 707-71 3 9E 51 5 R R BT F A1 A2 SR Hif
Shops Al & A2, G/F, Silvercorp International Tower, 707-713
Nathan Rd., Mongkok, KLN.

JUBE JURE B AR 0 25 56 1 R4
Shop F4, Phase 1, Telford Plaza, Kowloon Bay, KLN.

JLRE R VP I HUE 66-70%% B8 K B A&GHl
Shops A & G, G/F, Golden Crown Court, 66-70 Nathan Rd.,
TST., KLN

JUHESR VP H 50 240 74-78 5% SCAR K I 3t B
Shop B, G/F., Manson House, 74-78 Nathan Rd., TST., KLN

A LK HER 399k 1K R I521235-237 3 i
Shop No. 235-237, Level 2, 39 Lung Sum Avenue, Landmark
North, Sheung Shui, N.T.

D KL 12 A
Shop 12, KCRC Shatin Station, N.T.

B R = M6 A R AT
Shop 46A, Level 3, Shatin Plaza, Shatin, N.T.

D B IEA 1 8 SR B 5 313 17 55 B
Shop No. 317, L3, New Town Plaza, 18 Sha Tin Centre Street,
Shatin, N.T.

BT 1 L A 1 S P T RS R L L 1 141 A
Shop No. 1141, L1, Phase 1, Tuen Mun Town Plaza, 1 Tuen Shing
St. Tuen Mun, N.T.

L P R A3 M T R 5 — 48 R Al
Shop No.48, 1/F., Tuen Mun Town Plaza Phase II, TMTL235,
Tuen Mun, N.T.

BRI R A1 S5 RS L IR SR 5 I T 65% Al
Shop 6, G/F, Emperor Plaza, 55 Chung On St., Tsuen Wan, N.T.

WS R LT8R T
G/F, 98 Chung On St., Tsuen Wan, N.T.

HFICIITE LA 155 55T
G/F, 155 Castle Peak Rd., Yuen Long, N.T.

BT R AR A A U R RS 6 W S48 5% A
Shop 6W548, Hong Kong International Airport, Chek Lap Kok,
N.T.

T LI L P O B IR P Lo B 30B 9%
Shop No. 30B, G/F, Commercial Accommodation of Park Central,
9 Tong Tak Street, Tseung Kwan O, N.T.
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THE PRC "1
1 s ORI R B 138 B R AT IS 1195805
4

Shop 119, L1, Xin Dong An Market, 138 Wang Fu Jing Street,
Dong Cheng District, Beijing, the PRC

2 GRS S R A SO M AR 3 AL st R R 18
1/F, New World Mall, 3 Chong Wen Men Wai Street, Chong Wen
District, Beijing, the PRC

3 oIt T G AR [ G B A 12095 106 B B —
1/F, Xi Dan Mall, 120 North Xi Dan Street, Xi Cheng District,
Beijing, the PRC

4 eI b T I (AR A I B K O3 BIE B 5 T B A RS
No.A, 2nd Floor, Wan Da Plaza, 93 Lang Garden, Jian Guo Road,
ChaoYang District, Beijing, the PRC

5 AR Al st T v A 2 B A P B T B — o G TR
Gold Jewellery Section, 2 Huayuan Road, Haidian, Beijing, the PRC

6 oI T VG A I AR B R A 101 55 B Y b0 TR B
b—/E
1/F, Jewellery Section North, Parkson Shopping Centre, 101 Fu
Xing Men Nei Street, Xicheng District, Beijing,
the PRC

7 G T NE R I RY AT VG 7 1 SRR VY R R 5 ek R
2/F, Jewellery Section, Shunyi Xi Dan Mall, 1 Fugian West Street,
Shunyi District, Beijing, the PRC

8 b I RS L SR DU B vl B 1 89 9 TR B AL — g
1/F, Jewellery Section North, 189 Dong Si Huan Zhong Rd.,
Zhaoyang District, Beijing, the PRC

9 PBLE R R T H R #253-255 9K TR B RO 4R
TR I
1/F, Jewellery Section, Wang Fu Jing Department Store,
253-255 Wang Fu Jing Street, Dong Cheng District, Beijing,
the PRC

10 P B TR B T FERB I B (1 = P 138 BE(C9309)
No0.C9309, Section P13, Waiting Area, Bai Yun Airport, Hua Du
District, Guangzhou City, Guangdong Province, the PRC

10 o SR R T IR [ SR A0 A e SR T M 5
Jinan Yinzuo Underground Shopping Plaza, 99 Le-yuan Street,
Lixia District, Jinan City, Shandong Province, the PRC

12 R L R TR T L B 15 SRR R
Shop 81, Yinzuo Commercial City, 15 Yingxiong Shanxi Road,
Jinan City, Shandong Province, the PRC

o R 7 PR T SR R S 4 B 89 S AT B AL B 5 7T B2
1%

2/F, Lanzhou New World Hui Mei Department Store,
89 Zhang Ye Road, Chengguan District, Lanzhou City,
Gansu Province, the PRC

o B 1L PG T /I T 199 58 K I R B
Tai Yuan Wang Fu Jing Department Store, 99 Qin Xian Street,
Xiao Dian District, Tai Yuan City, Shanxi Province, the PRC

o b BT VL R L R 7565 v B
1/F, Grand Ocean Department Store, 756 Zhong Shan Rd.,
Jianghan District, Wuhan City, Hubei Province, the PRC

oI b 2 BT R O 688 5% TH: B 8 455 ey v o — A8
1/F, World Trade Shopping Centre, 688 Jie Fang Rd., Wuhan City,
Hubei Province, the PRC

Hh B ) & BT L A 5695 T B b —
1/F, Jian Er Department Store, 569 Heping Road, Qingshan
District, Wuhan City, Hubei Province, the PRC

A1 2 T T [ AR SRR 7 1 8 R i T B

1/F, Pinmao Shop, Wuhan Zhongshang Department Store, 18
Xudong Road, Wuchang District, Wuhan City, Hubei Province, the
PRC

o R AL 7 I L 18 T B 6 SR AL 1M 1 101
No. 1101, 1/F, Qun Guang Plaza, 6 Luo Yu Rd.,
Hong Shan District, Wuhan City, Hubei Province, the PRC

o R A 7 T R [ e B 7 e P R e e 148
1/F, Zhong Shang Plaza Shopping Centre, 7 Zhong Nan Rd.,
Wuchang District, Wuhan City, Hubei Province, the PRC

r T L S T A L P 2205 S S i e —
1/F, Ningbo No.2 Department Store, 220 Zhongshan Road,
Ningbo City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC

o BRIV A U T S 22 B SA6 SRR 7T B KM — A
1/F, Hang Zhou Department Store, 546 Yan An Street, Hangzhou
City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC

R TR U T B 25 15%, 249 SRR T A% I A R L
1

1/F, Jie Bai Group Xin Shi Ji Department Store, 251/249 Jie Fang
Rd., Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC

e g T L B 799 A A R 4 — A
1/F, Nanjing Central Mall, 79 Zhong Shan Nan Rd.,
Nanjing City, the PRC

o R T A I (A S i R R e
1/F, Shanghai Paris Spring Building, 1 Songhu Road, Yangpu
District, Shanghai City, the PRC
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DISTRIBUTION OF THE GROUP’S RETAIL CHAIN
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MACAU M

1 WM 325k T
No.325 Avenida Almeida Ribeiro, Macau

2 MBS TRIGEK12-1898H T
Avenida Do Infante D.Henrique No:12-18, Macau

30 MR TR RS8R TR R T AJE
Em Macau, Avenida Do Infante D. Henrique No 58, Comercial
Infante Res-Do-Chao A

4 WP T N AR AT T O A ) 02018 9B &l
Shop No.2018, The Grand Canal Shoppes, The Ventetian
Macao-Resort-Hotal, The Cotal Strip, Taipa, Macau

USA %
1 185 Canal Street, Store A, New York, NY 10013

2 Westfield Oakridge Mall, 925 Blossom Hill Road, Suite 1205,
San Jose, CA 95123-1294 USA

CANADA %k

1 SRR FUA UG 226 154151 98 AL 101095 &
Unit 1010, Aberdeen Centre, 4151 Hazelbridge Way, Richmond, B.
C., V6X 4J7, Canada



~2” LUK FOOK HOLDINGS (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

E‘j@ ek E(EE)BIE LS

WU BT B A1 8 A AL 2 S SIS T SRAT 25
25th Floor, BEA Tower, Millennium City 5, 418 Kwun Tong Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2308 1218 Fax: (852) 2374 1696
Website: www.lukfook.com.hk E-mail: group@lukfook.com.hk



	Cover
	Contents 
	Corporate Information 
	Corporate Events 
	Honours & Awards 
	Chief Executive’s Statement 
	Management Discussion and Analysis 
	Corporate Governance Report 
	Report of the Directors 
	Independent Auditor’s Report 
	Consolidated Income Statement 
	Consolidated Balance Sheet 
	Balance Sheet 
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 
	Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 
	Notes to the Financial Statements 
	Business Structure 
	Distribution of Luk Fook Licensee Shops in the PRC
	Distribution of the Group’s Retail Chain 
	Back Cover

